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INDEPENDENT LUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of EFC Lirnited
Report on the Audit of the Standaicne Finzncial Statements

1.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of EFC Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, statement of Changes in Equity and statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended and notes to the financiai Statements including & summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalons financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Ac?’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with Indian Acccounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and
ctheraccounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs ofthe Company
as at March 31, 2024, the Profit, total comprehensive income, changes in eguity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our auditin &ccordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143 (10) of the Act. Our réspansibilities under those Standards are further described
inthe ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent cf the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartersd Accountants of India (‘the ICAI’) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to ourauditofthe Standalone Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have ohtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matter:

a) Duringthe year, the company had redeemazd its preference shares of Rs. 246.04 lakhs as
per the terms aad conditions approved at the time of issuing preference share.

b} The company hag disinvested its holding in Rubis Tech Space LLP on Nov 30", 2023_Qur
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a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and i do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, key audit matters are not applicable to the
company as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Finansial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Report of the Board of Directors and
the Report on the Corporate Governance but does not include the Standalone Financial
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalones Fin ial Statements does not cover the other information
and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our
audlt of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
nformaticn identified above and in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materrally inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this
regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standzlone Financial Statements
g Y

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standaicne Financial Statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adeqguate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial
Statements that give & true and fair view and are free from material misstatements, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but toc do so.
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s fj DONRINg
process.




7. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from msterial mizstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s repert that includes our cpinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guaraniee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing will always detect 2z material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professicnal judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

3

= [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, end obiain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such conttols.

e Evaluste the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and rzlated disclosures made by management.

° Corclude on the approp astewess of management’s use of the going concern basis of

nce obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or cond itions may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a goirng concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw atizntion in our auditer’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statemsnts or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are kased on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of ocur
auditor’s report. However, futurs events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
1o continue as a going concaimn.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying trensactions and events in 2 manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnit
that, mdw!dually in aggragate, makes it probab e that the sconomic decisions of a
reasonably know.eagcab!.e user of the standaloneg financial statements may be




influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with thcse charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report uniess law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
notbe communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing sowould
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

8. Other Matter Paragraph:

When a Key Audit Matters section is presented in the auditor’s report and an Other Matter
paragraph is also considered necessary, the auditor may add further context to the
heading “Other Matter”, such as “Other Matter — Scope of the Audit”, to differentiate the
Other Matter paragraph from the individual matters described in the Key Audit Matters
section.

When an Other Matier paragraph is included to draw users’ attention to a matter relating
to Other Reporting Responsikilities addressed in the auditor’s report, the paragraph may
be included in the Report cn Other Legal and ReguLaiory Reguirements section.

When relevant to all the aucitor’s responsibilities or users’ understanding of the auditor’s
report, the Other Matter paragraph may be included as a separate section following the
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements and the Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Reguirements.

The company has capitalised the expenses incurred for development of project sites,
which are contracted on lsasehold terms, till they are ready for commercial use or
operation under Capital Work in Progress. Once the sites are commercially ready to use,
these capital work in progress amount will be transferred to leasehold improvements and
the same will be amortised over the remaining lease period.

The company has met all the conditions prescribed under section 129 (3) read with rule 8
and its ultimate parent company is preparmﬁ consolidated fmanc:lal statements for the

consolidated financial statements.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1,” & statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said
Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3} of the Act, we report that;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2024, frorn being appointed as & director in terms of Section 184 (2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls cver financial reporting, refer “Annexure 2” to this report.

The managerial remuneraiion has been paid and provided in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 arnd Schedule V of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.




iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protsction Fund by the Company.

The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge or belief
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources orkind of funds) by the company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities
(intermediaries} with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company {ultimate beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee,

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge or belief
no funds have been received by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies) including foreign entities (funding parties) with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatscever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate
beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procsdures considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances carried out by us, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to belisve that the representations under sub-clause (2) and (b)
contain any meaterial misstatements.

iv. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

V. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies {accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for

the

Company only w.e f Aprit 1, 2024, reporting under this clause is not

applicable.

For NIKHIL WARANKAR & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(FRN: 153107W)

j\O‘

CA Nikhil Warankar

Proprietor

Membership Number: 158583
Pune, May 29, 2024
UDIN: 24198983BKFXYT9653



(i)

Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date to the members of the Company for the
yvear ended March 31, 2024 of EFC Limited:

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
IND AS financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the
normal course of audit, we report that

(a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment as on balance sheet

date.

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) The major Property, Plant and Equipment of the company have been physically
verified by the manageiment st reasonabie intervals during the year and no material
discrepancies were neoticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the basis
of examination of the racords of the company, the title deeds of immovable
properties (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the
standalone financial statements are held in the name of the Company

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
examination of the records of the company, the company has not revalued its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets
during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
examination of the records of the company r:o proceedings have been initiated or
are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1688 (45 of 1988) and rules made

thereunder.
(@) According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
examination of the records cf the compsany, the management has conducted

verification of inventory at reasonab’e intervals during the vear, af*d n @hPa éﬁq
discrepancies were noticed on such ver'flﬂa*lop In our opinion, the
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(iii)

inventory is fair and proper, in sccordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles, and is on the same basis as in the grevious year.

(b) According to the informaucn and sxplanations given to us and based on the
examination of the records of the company, the company has not been sanctioned
new working capital limits from banks or financial institutions during the year, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current

assets. As such, reporting under paragraphn 3 {ii){b) of the order is notapplicable to the
company.

(a) (A) In our opinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has made investments in/ provided any guarantee or security/ granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to Subsidiaries, joint
ventiures and associates ars as follows:

Particulars Amount (In Lakhs)
Aggregate amount during the | 8861.77
year
Balance outstending zs =at | 922.47

balance sheet date

(B) According to the information and explanstions given to us and based on the audit
procedures carried on by us, the company has provided loans, advances in the
nature of loans to parties other than Subsigiaries, joint ventures and associates are
as follows:

Particulars Amount {in Lakhs)
Aggregate amount | 1913.74
during the year - Others
Balance outstanding as | 1473.83
at balance shest cate -
Others

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performead by us, we are of the opinion that the investments made
during the year and the terms and conditions of loans given are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the company’s interest.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
examination of the records of the company, the loans and advances in the nature
of loans granted by the company are repayable after 3 years in a single bullet
payment with interest rate of 12%p.a. and no loan was fallen due during the
pericd.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
examination of the records of the company, since the loans and advances in the
nature of loans granted by the company are repayable after 3years in a single bullet
paymentwith interest rate of 12%p.2. and rio lcan was fallen due during the period.
As such, there is no amount overdue for the period.

(e) According to the informatior and explanations given to us and
examination of the recaords of the company, no loan or advance i




(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended
or fresh loans granted 1o settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same
parties.

(f) According to the information and explanaticns given to us and based on the

examination of the records of the company, the company has not granted any loans
oradvances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying
anyterms or period of repayment. As such, reporting under paragraph 3 (iii)(f) of the
order is not applicabie to the company.

Based on the audit procedures conducted by us and according to the information
and explanations given 1o us, in our opinion, the Company has not given any loans
to its Directors or to any other persons in whom the Director is interested under
Section 185. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 of the
Act in respect of loans or advances provided to the parties covered under Section
185. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in
respectofinvestments made or loans or guarantees provided to the parties covered
under Section 186.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or any amount which
deemed to be deposit as per the provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder
and accordingly paregraph 3 (v) of the order is not applicable for the company.

The maintenance of cost records is not applicable to the compa ny pursuant to the
provisions of Section 148 (1) of the companies Act, 2013.

() The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dL.cS including provident fund and other material statutory
dues applicable to it. Howsver, company is not regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues of Provident Funds and
professional tax. According to the information and explanations given to us and
from the records of the Company, there weare no undisputed statutory dues as at
the last day of the financial year which were outstanding for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable except the following:

Sr No * Amount
(Rs. in | Period to which

Name of the Statute | Nature of dues Lakhs) amount relates

1 Professional Tax Act, | Professional Tax 0.72 FY 2018-2019
1875

2 Professional Tax Act, | Professional Tax 0.85 FY 2019-2020
1975

3 Professional Tax Act, | Professional Tax 0.18 | FY 2021-2022
1975 | '

4 Professional Tax Act, | Professional Tax 4.08 FY 2023-2024
1875

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and from the exa
of account and records of the company, there
Service tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value added tax, Goods and services t
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

are no dues in respect of Inco




{viii)

(xi)

In our opinion and according tc the information and explanations given to us, the
Company does not have any transaction which have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or
in the payment of inte:’esL thereon to any lender.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our audit procedures, we report that the company has not been declared wilful
defaulter by any bark or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

(c) Term loans were spalied for the purpese for which the loans were obtained.

{d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no
funds raised on short-isrm basis have bean used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from zny entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) During the year, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public
offeror further public cffer (including debt instruments) and term loans.

(b} The Company has nct made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly or optionally convertible debentures during the year.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the
true and fair view of the Financial Statements and as per the information and
explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company
or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) During the year nc report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there has been no whistle-blower complaints received dur ing the
company.

—_
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(xiii

L=

-{xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

{xviii)

According to the explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company
within the meaning of Section 405 of the Act. As such, reporting under clause 3
(xii) (2) to (c) is not applicable.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and as per the information and
explanations given to us, we report that the transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the

details as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards have been
disciosed in the Financial Statements.

(&) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company is not required to
have an internal audit system as per the provisions of the Companies Act 2013. As
such, reporting under 3{xiv)(a) and {b) is not appiicable.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and as per the information and
explanations given to us, we report that the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions of the nature as described in Section 192 (1) of the Act.

(a) Based on the audit procedures performed by us and as per the information and
explanations given o us, we report that the Company is not required to be
registered under Sectior, 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (xvi)(a) of the order is not appticable forthe company.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the
Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(c) The Company would not be classified as a Core Investment Com pany (CIC) as
defined in the regulaticnis made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d)According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course
of audit, the Group dess not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of
clause 3{xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
ccordingly clause 3 (xviii) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageirg and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financiz! liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Dirsctors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing

has come to our attention, which causss us to believe that any mateg




(xx)

(xxi)

of meeting its liabilities L,x=stang atthe date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
thatthis is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the fadts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within & pericd of on ‘, ar from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and whean they fall due.

{a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation provided to us and
based on the audit precedures carried out by us, we report that the Company is
not required to incur expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under
section 135 of the Act, since the Company does not satisfy any of the criteria of
applicability of CSR provisions as specified under section 135 of the Act.
Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the
Compazny.

in our opinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company does not have investments in subsidiaries/ associates or joint venture

companies. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xxi) ¢f the Order is not applicable.

For NIKHIL WARANKAR & CO.

Chartered Accountants
{(FRN: 153107W)

CA Nikhil Warankar

Proprietor
M. No: 198983

Pune, May 29, 2024
UDIN:24198582BKFXYT9653



Annexure-2 referred to in paragraph 9(2)(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report on even date on the Internal Financial Controls
under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

To the Members of EFC Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of EFC Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibitities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of india. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their opsrating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material missiatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necassary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that couid have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Disclaimer of Opinion

The system of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company were not made
available to us to enable us to determine if the Company has established adequate internal
financial control over financial reporting and whether such internal financial controls were
opereating effectively as at March 31, 2024.

We have considered the disclaimer reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent
of audit tests applied in our audit of the financial statements of the Company, and the
disclaimer does not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

For NIKHIL WARANKAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN:153107W)
el & 3
CA Nikhil Wa Lankar
Proprietor -
Membership Number: 198983
Pune, May 29, 2024
UDIN:24198983BKFXYTS653




EFC Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts In rupees lakhs except share and per share data, unless atherwise stated)

{a

(b

(c)

Company overview

EFC Limited (‘the Company') was incorporated on 19/02/2014 as a Public Limited Company under the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is engaged in the business of
renting of immovable property (Co-working spaces), Building Work Contracts projects, Business management services, Brokerage & Commission and Project Manageemnt
Services. The address of its corporate office is Unit No 1,2,3 and 4, 6th Floor,VB Capital S No 209(P), CTS Pune, Maharashtra - 411007.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The financial stetements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 (as amended from time to time), and
presentation requirements of Division [l of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule Il), as applicable to the financial statement.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual and going concern basis except for certain financial assets and Uabilities
which are measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (INR 00000), except when otherwise
indicated.

Functional and presentation currency

The company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the fundctional and presentation currency.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

MCA has notified Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customer, mandatarily applicable from 07 April 2018 either based on a full retrospective or modified
retrospective application. The standard requires the Company to recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services 1o customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. It establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue
arising from conzracts with customers.

The application of the new accounting policy has required management to make the following judgments:

The Company is required to assess each of its contracts with customers te determine whether performance obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in time in order
to determine the appropriate method of recognising revenue. The Company has assessed that based on the sale and purchase agreements entered into with customers
and the provisions of relevant laws and regulations, where contracts are entered into to provide real estate assets to customer, the Company does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Company and usually has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. In these circumstance the Company
recognises revenue over time. Where this is not the case revenue is recognised at a point in time.

Determination of transaction prices

The Company is required to determine the transaction price in respect of each of its contracts with custemers. In making such judgment the Company assass the impact
of any variable consideration in the contract, due to discounts or penalties, the existence of any significant financing component in the contract and any non-cash
consideration in the contract. In determining the impact of variable consideration the Company uses the "most-likely amount" method in IndAS 115, whereby the
transaction price is determined by reference to the single most likely amount in a range of possible consideration amounts.

Transfer of contrelin contracts with customers

In cases where the Company determines that performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time, revenue is recognised when control over the assets that is the
subject of the contract is transferred to the customer. In the case of contracts to sell real estate assets this is generally when the unit has been registered through a sale
deed and legal enforceable right to collect payment is established.

In addition, the application of Ind AS 115 has resulted in the following estimation process:

Allecation of transaction price to perfarmance obligation in contracts with customers

For registered contracts through a sale deed , but the project is not complete, revenue from such contracts is recognised over time. The Company has elected to apply the
input methed in allocating the transaction price to performance obligations where revenue is recognised over time. The Company considers that the use of the input
method which requires revenue recognition on the basis of the Company's efforts to the satisfaction of the perfarmance obligation provides the best reference of revenue
actually earned. In applying the input method the Company estimates the cost to complete the projects in order to determine the amount of revenue to be recognised.
These estimates include the cost of providing infrastructure, potential claims by contractors as evaluated by the project consultant and the cost of meeting other
contractual oblizations to the customers.




(d)

(e

Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfera liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or the transfer the liability takes place either: in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the assat or liability, The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in economic best interest.

Afair value measurement of 2 non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the assets in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of
relevant abserveble inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuaticn technigues for which the lowest input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3: Valuation technigues for which the lowest input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
The assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis, primarily consists of nen-financial assets such as intangible assets.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined the class of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristic and risks of the assets
and liability and the level of fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the batance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
(i) An asset is classified as current when it is:
= Expectad to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
= Held primarily for the purpose of trading
= Expectad to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
= Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period
(i) All other assets are classified as non-current.
(iii) A liability is classified as current when:
= it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
= [t is held primarily for the purpose of trading
= Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
= There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
(iv) Allother liabilities are classified as non-current.
(v} Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and eguipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, cost
directly attributable to bring the assets to its working condition for the intended use and borrowing costs, if capitalization criteria are met. Any trade discounts and rebates
are deducted In arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if itincreases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond
its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing Property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure
and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of Property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognized. !

The Cempany identifies and determines cost of asset significant to total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining life.
Property, plant and equipment under installation or construction as at balance sheet date are shown as capital work-in-progress and the related advances are shown as

thar Annara

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on WDV basis over the useful life prescribed under Division Il of Companies Act, 2013. The idertified
components, if any, are depreciated on their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset. Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,
prescribes useful life for fixed assets. Further schedule Il also allows companies to use higher/lower useful live and residual value if such useful live and residual values can
be technically supported and justification for differences is disclosed in the financial statements. The Management believes that depreciation rate currently used fairly
reflants thi astirnata af the nsafiil lifas and residual valiis of nranarty nlant and anninmeants. thatish thasa rates in nartain rasas ara differant from lives nreserihad tnAer

The Company has estimated the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment, as follows:

Asset description Useful life
Computers and servers 5years
Networking equipments Syears
Furniture and fittings 7 vears
Office equipments Syears”

* Telephone equipment are depreciated over a period of 3 years as per internal technical evaluation

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation are complete and the asset s ready for its intended use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is classified as ‘Capital

advances' under other non-current assets in situations where the work for development of that asset has not commenced ar the asset, being
a standard/ shelf product, is not delivered and ready for intended use as decided by the Group. In situations where the work for development
of the asset has commenced, the cost of asset incurred till the reporting date is disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’




(g

(h)

Lease-hold improvements are amortised over the useful life of assets orthe primary period of lease, whichever is shorter. Pro-rata depreciation is provided from / upte the
date of purchase / disposal for assets purchased or sold during the year. Assets individually costing INR 5 or less are depreciated over a period of one year.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, plant and equipment are reviewed ateach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale, if its carrying amount will be recavered principally through a sale transaction rather than

through continuing use. Forthis to be the case, the asset must be available forimmediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms

that are usual and customary for sales of such assets and its sale must be highly probable and sale is expected to be completed within one

year from date of classification.

Non-current assets held for sale are presented separately in the currant section of the consolidated balance sheet Non-current assets

classified as held for sale are measurad at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, unless these items presented in
the disposal group are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits and financial assets that are specifically exempt from the

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired Separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortized on a WDV basis over the useful life prescribed under Division Il of Companies Act, 2013. The Company uses a rebuttable presumption that
the useful life of an intangible asser will not exceed ten years from the date when the asset is available for use. Such intangible assets and intangible assers not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. All other intangible assets are assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asser are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting year. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of censumption of future economic benefits embadied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognized.

The Company has estimated the following useful lives to provide amortisation on intangible assets, as follows:

Asset description Useful life
Software Syears

Foreign currency transactions and translations
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees ['INR"), the currency of India, which is the functional currency of the Company.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date of the transaction. Foreign-currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated to the relevant functional currency at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Fareign currency non-monetary assets / liabilities, measured at
historical cost are translated ar the exchange rate prevalent at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measurec‘l‘gLfair valug are translated at the
exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain / loss arising on translation of non-monetary it
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(i} Revenue recognition

(i

In March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") had notified Ind AS 115, ‘Revenue from Contract with Customers’, replacing the existing revenue recognition
standards Ind AS 18, ‘Revenue’, As per the new standard, revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to a customer in an amoun: that
reflects the fair value of the consideration received or receivable which the entity expects 1o be entitled in exchange fer those goods or services. Ind AS 115 establishes a
five-step model that is applied to revenue earned from a contract with a customer, regardless of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. The standard is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April, 2018. The Company has adopted to the extent applicable this standard using the modified retrospective approach.

Revenue is recopnized when, or as, control of a promised service transfers to a customer, inan amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchanga for transferring those services. To recognize revenues, the following five step approach is applied: (1) identify the contract with a custemer, (2) idsntify
the performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligatiens in the eontract, and 5)
recognize revenues when a performance obligationis satisfied.

Revenue recognition for time-and-matearial

Revenues related to time-and-materials are recognized over the period the services are provided using an input method (efforts expended).

Because of control transferring over time, revenue is recognized based on the extent of Progress towards completion of the performance obligation. The Company genzratly
use the efforts expended as measure of progress for the Company's contracts because there is a direct relationship between inputand productivity.

Revenue recognition for fixed price contracts

Fixed price contracts are often modified t6 account far changes in contract specifications and requirements. The Company considers contract modifications to exist when
the modification either creates new or changes the existing enforceable rights and obligations. Most of contra ct modifications are for services that are nat distinct from the
existing contrac: due to the significant service provided in the context of the contract and are accounted for as if they were part of that existing contract. The effect of a
contract modification on the transaction price and our measure of progress for the performance obligation to which it relates, is recognized as an adjustment to revenue
(either as an increase in or a reduction of revenue) on a cumulative catch-up basis.

Revenue is recognized net of discounts and allowances, goods and services ltaxes, and includes reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, with the corresponding out-of-
pocket expenses included in cost of revenues.

The Company extend credit to clients based upon Management's assessment of their creditworthiness. The Company assess the timing of the transter of services to the
customer as compared to the timing of payments to determine whether a significant financing component exists. As a practical expedient, the Company do not assess the
existence of a significant financing component when the difference between payment and transfer of deliverables is a year or less. If the difference in timing arises for
reasons other than the provision of finance to either the customer or the Cempany, no financing component is deemed to exist. The primary purpose of our invoicing terms
is 1o provide customers with simplified and predictable ways of purchasing our services, not to receive or provide financing from or to customers.

Incentive revenues, volume discounts, or any other form of variable consideration is estimated using either the sum of probability weighted amounts in a range of possible
consideration amounts (expected value), or the single most likely amount in a range of possible consideration amounts (most likely amount), depending on which method

better predicts the amount of consideration realizable. Transaction price includes variable consideration only to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal of
revenues recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved. The estimates of variable consideration and determination

lings in excess of revenues recognized. The Company classify contract liability as current or noncurrent based on
the timing of when they expect to recognize the revenues. The Company classify it's right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either as accountsreceivablz ora
contract assets. Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Revenue recognized but not billed to customers is classified as
contract assets in the statements of financial position. Contract assets represents contracts where right to consideration is unconditional (i.e. only the passage of time is
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Finance income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asser or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate. the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but

Dividend income
Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, which is generally the shareholders' approval date.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to Eetready forits intended use or sale. All ather borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs also include exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.




(k) Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contractis, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Policy applicable before April 01, 2019

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or
contains lease, if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys the right to use the asset or assets, ever if
that right is explicitly in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as finance lease or operating lease.

Finance lease
Finance lease, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the
inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of leased property and present value of minimum lease payments.

Lease payment are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of lease
liability. Finance charge are recognised as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. Lease management fee, legal charges and other initial direct costs of lease are
canitalizec as thev are directlv attributable to the asser.

A leased asset is depreciated on straight line basis over the useful life of the asset. However if there are no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership
by the end of the lease term the capitalized asset is depreciated on straight line basis over the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Operating lease:
Lease where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leases term are classifies as operating leases. QOperating lease
payments are recognised as expense in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Policy applicable with effect from April 01, 2018

Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract s, or contains a lease. at inception of the contract. A contract is. or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the Cuse of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of

an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: i) the contract involves the use

of an identified asset, i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits

from use of the asset through the period of the lease and iii) the Company has the
right to direct the use of the asset.







() Employee benefits expense and retirement
() Gratuity liability
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vasted
employees at ratirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an ameunt based on the respective employee's base salary and the tenure of
employment. The liability is determined based on an actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date using the projected unit credit
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(ii) Compensated absences

statement of profit and loss in the year in which the absences occur.

The Company presents the liability as current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional legal and contractual right to defer its settlement
for twelve months after the reporting date.

(iii) Provident fund

The Company's contribution to provident fund is charged 1o the statement of profit and loss. The Company’s contributions towards provident fund are deposited with the
Ragional Provident Fund Commissioner under a defined contribution nlan. in accordance with Emolovees’ Pravident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act. 1952,

(iv) Share based compensation
Stock-based compansation represents the cost related 10 stock-based awards granted to employees of the Company by its ultimate holding Company. In accordance with
Ind AS 102, '‘Accounting for share based payment’, the Company measures stock-hased compensation cost at grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the award
and recognizes the cost (net of estimated forfeitures) over the requisite service period. The Company estimates the fair value of stock options and the cost is recorded
under the head employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss with cerresponding increase in “Share Based Payment Reserve”.

(V) Short-term employee benefits comprising employee costs including performance bonus is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the basis of the amount paid
or payable for the period during which services are rendered by the employee.

(m] Tax expense
Tax expense cemprises current and deferred income tax. Current income-tax Is
measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are reconrrized in correlation to the underlving transaction either in OCI or

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between taxable
income and accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except
when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recagnition of goodwill or an asset

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized
only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilized, except when the deferred tax asset arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and. at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor the taxable orofit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent
that it has becorne probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Current and defarred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are related to items that are recognised In other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprenensive income or directly in equity respectively,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a leéauy enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authaority.




(n) Provisicn and contingent liability

(o

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecoromic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation that can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best
estimate required ro settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These estimates are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting
the future obligations under the contract. Provisions for cnerous contracts are measured at the present value of lower of the expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and
the expacted cost of terminating the contract.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occcurrence of one or more uncertain
future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.
The Comnanv does not recognize a contingant liahility hut discloses its axistence in the financial starements.

Financialinstruments
Afinancialinstrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asser of one entity and a financial liability or aquity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Allfinancial assets are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets (other than financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset. Purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at

(i) Financial instruments at amortized cosrt

Afinancial instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) the assetis held within a business model whose cbjective is 10 hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amourit outstanding.
After initia. measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in other income in the
statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. This category includes cash and bank balances, loans,
unbilled revenue, trade and other receivables.

(i) Financial instrurnent at Fair Vaiue through Other Comprehensive Income (OCH)

Afinancial instrument is classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

Financial instruments included within the OCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are recognized in OCI.
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(iii} Financial instrument at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization at amertized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, is classified at fair
value through profit and loss, Financial instruments included in the fair value through profit and loss category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

{iv] De-recognition of financial assets

Afinancial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at falr value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
(i} Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at tair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate [EIR] method. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking inte account any discount or premium on acguisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
innliidad as finanre nnsts in tha statemeant nf arafir and Inss

(iii} De-recognition of financial tiabilities

A financial liability s derecognised when the obligation under the lianility is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecotnition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liabilitv. The difference in the respective carrving amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported In the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legalright to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to gbttle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Impairment

(i) Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valuad through profit or loss. Loss allowance
for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are
measured at an amount equal to the twelve month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured
at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be
recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in statement o profit and loss.

(i) Non-financial assets

Al the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets 1o determine whether there Is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recaverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to detarmina the extent of the impairment
loss {if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their prasent
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit} is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used 1o determine the recoverable amount. The carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable, amount provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any accumulated amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss has been recognised for the asset in prior years.

Segmentreporting

An operating sefmant is @ component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Cempany’s ether components, and for which discrete financial information is available. Operating segments are
reported in a mannar consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker ('CODM').

The Company's Board of Director’s has been identified as the CODM who is responsible for financial decision making and assessing performance. The Company nas a
single operating segment as the operating results of the Company are reviewed on an overall basis by the CODM.

Earnings per share ('"EPS')
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable 1o equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period.

Diluted EFS amounts are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential equity sharas. The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the avarage
market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each year presented.

Cash and cash 2quivalents

Cash and cash zquivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, short-term deposits with an eriginal maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdraft as they are
considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Government Grants

The Company recognizes grants in the financial statements as a reduction from cost of sales 10 match them with the expenditures for which they are intended to
compensate or as other income in cases where grants is not linked to expenditure incurred. Grants are recognized in the financial statements when there is reasonable
assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions for their receipt and a reasonable expectation that the funds will be received. In certain circumstances, the
receipt of an grant may not be subject to any candition or requirement to incur further costs, in which case the grant is recognized in the financial statements fer the period
in which it becomes receivable after claim is filed or company has finalized amounts that would be available.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires Management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
ravenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end cf each reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period are discussed below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management estimates the useful lives of these property, plant and equipment to be within 5 to 7 years. The carrying amount of the Company's preperty, plant and
eguipment at March 31, 2023 was Rs.3,629.58 lakhs [March 31, 2022: Rs. 779,25 lakhs . Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could
impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting date. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

When value in use calculations are undertaken, Management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash generating unit and chose a suitable
discount rate in arder to calculate the present value of those cash flows.




(i) Impairment of financial assets
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The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether thare is
ohjective evidence of impairment, the Company considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficuities of the debtor and default or
significant delay in payments.

Percentage of completion of contracts

The Company uses the percentage of completion method using the input (effort expended) method to measure progress towards completion in respect of fixed price
contracts. Percentage of completion method relies on estimates of toral expected efforts 1o complete the project. These estimates are assessed continually during the
term of the contracts and the recognized revenue and profit are subject to revision as the contract progresses 1o completion. When estimates indicate that a loss will be
incurred, the loss is provided for in the period in which the loss becomes probable.

Contracts with customers often include promises 1o transfer multiple services to a customer. Determining whether services are considered distinct performance
obligations that should be accounted for separately or together reguires significant judgment based on nature of the contract, transfer of control over the service, ability of
the service to benefit the customer on its own or together with other readily available resources and the ability of service te be separately identifiable from other promises
Judgments macle in applying accounting policies

Inthe process of applying the Company's accounting policies, Management has made the following judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes

Significant judgment is involved in determining the Company's provision for income taxes, There are cartain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Company recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.




EFC LIMITED
(CIN:U70200PN2014PLC150686)

Reg Office: Unit No.1,2,3 & 4, 6th Floor, V B Capitol, S No.209(P), CTS, Pune - 411007

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
(% in Lakhs, Unless otherwise stated)

Sr : As at As at
No Pofahees Note | March31,2024 | March 31, 2023
I. |Assets
1. [Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 7.730.69 3,629.58
(b) Capital work in progress 4 2,257.45 1,142.96
(c) Right of use assets 5 23,190.22 21,356.80
(d) Intangible assets 6 1.60 0.55
(e) Intangible assets under development 7 46.63 15.25
(f) Financial assets
i) Investments 8 421.57 172.93
i} Loans 9 - 155.79
iii) Other financial assets 10 3,630.78 1,493.41
(9) Deferred tax asset (net) 11 - 314.77
Total Non-Current Assets 37,278.93 28,282.04
2. |Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 12 5,570.19 1,5638.26
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 1,637.81 169.89
(iii) Other balances with Banks 14 - 2.03
(iv) Loans 15 20.00 -
(b) Current tax assets (net) - -
(c) Other current assets 16 5,203.23 6,211.87
Total current assets 12,431.23 7,922.05
Total assets 49,710.16 36,204.09
Il. |Equity & liabilities
1. |Equity
(a) Share capital 17 6.25 252.29
(b) Other equity 4,858.62 582.77
Total Equity 4,864.87 835.06
2. |Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 9,010.54 3,085.74
(i) Lease liabilities 19 17,647.70 18,263.65
(iii) Other financial liabilities 20 2,881.19 2,507.43
(iv) Deferred Tax Liabilities 256.99 -
(b) Provisions 21 43.76 13.52
Total Non-Current Liabilities 29,840.19 23,870.34
3. |Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 9,354.37 3,872.12
(i) Lease liabilities 23 4,661.21 4,362.06
(i) Trade payables 24 = -
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises = -
and small enterprises
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 3.30 617.34
and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 25 21.51 680.69
{b) Income tax liabiiities (net) 430.03 358.72
(c) Other current liabilities 26 439.46 1,542.15
(d) Provisions 27 95.21 65.60
Total current liabilities 15,005.10 11,498.68
Total equity & liabilities 49,710.16 36,204.09
Summary of significant accounting policies 1,2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors EFC Limited
FOR NIKHIL WARANK A4S
Chartered Accountantg
i
a
Proprietor
Membership No.: 1989 07T
Pune, May 29, 2024 May 29, 2024 At 024 At Pune.
UDIN: 24198983BKFXYT9€E53
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EFC LIMITED
(CIN:U70200PN2014PLC150686)
Reg Office: Unit No.1,2,3 & 4, 6th Floor, V B Capitol, S No.209(P), CTS, Pune - 411007

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

Rs. In Lakhs,Except per share data

Sr. -
Particulars Note
No. As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
1 |Income
a) Revenue from operations 28 22,771.81 11,917.57
b) Other income 29 505.05 97.02
Total Income 23,276.86 12,014.59
2 |Expenses
a) Cost of services 30 2,576.19 3,795.33
b) Employee benefits expense 31 898.21 495.64
c¢) Finance costs 32 3,424.65 1,651.05
d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 33 5,774.07 4510.74
e) Other expenses ( Any item exceeding 10% of the total expenses 34 2,085.67 612.53
relating to continuing operations to be shown separately)
f) Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods 3,406.07 -
Total expenses 18,164.85 11,065.30
3 |Profit before Tax 5,112.01 949.29

4 |Tax expense

Current tax 430.03 535.51
Deferred tax 571.77 (131.43)
Tax expenses related to earlier years (181.54)
Total Tax Expenses 820.26 404.08
5 |Net Profit/(loss) for the period (5-6) 4,291.74 545.21

6 |Other Comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to = g
profit or loss in subsequent periods

Remeasurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans 35 (15.31) 0.36

Income tax effect 3.85 0.11

Net other Comprehensive income not to be reclassified (11.46) 0.24

to profit or loss in susequent period

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 0.49
7 |Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 4,280.28 545.45
8 |Paid-up equity share capital (face value of T 10/- each) 6.25 6.25
9 Reserve excluding Revaluation Reserves as per

Balance sheet of previous accounting year
10 Earnings Per Share (before extraordinary items) 36

(of Rs. 10/- each)(not annualised):

Basic (in %) 6,848.45 906.08

Diluted (in %) 6,848.45 906.08
1 Earnings Per Share (after extraordinary items)

(of Rs. 10/- each)(not annualised):

Basic (in %) 6,848.45 906.08

Diluted (in ) 6,848.45 906.08

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors EFC Limited

FOR NIKHIL WARANKAR & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 153107W

\J

CA Nikhil Warankar
Proprietor \
Membership No.: 198983?%
Pune, May 29, 2024 NG

DIN:01733060 e
May 29, 2024 At Pune. May 29, 2024 At PL




EFC LIMITED

(CIN:U70200PN2014PLC150686)

Reg Office: Unit No.1,2,3 & 4, 6th Floor, V B Capitol, S No.209(P), CTS, Pune - 411007

CASHFLOW STATEMENT
(¥ in Lakhs)
: Year ended Year ended
aiiare 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET PROFIT/ (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 5,112.01 949.29
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & amortization expense 5,774.07 4,510.74
Dividend received - (0.05)
Interest income (505.05) (0.08)
Finance Cost 3,424.65 1,403.79
Gain on sale of asset (11.01) -
Prior Period Adjustments (4.44) -
Other Non Cash Item 181.54 1,139.93
Operating profit before working capital changes 13,971.76 8,003.61
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (4,031.93) (1,427.22)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Financial Assets - (1,107.93)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets 1,008.64 (4,165.41)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables (614.03) 100.36
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (975.97) 1,421.51
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (1,102.70) 490.63
Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions 119.70 356.26
Operating Profit / (Loss) after working Capital Changes 8,375.46 3,671.80
Direct taxes (paid)/ refund (430.03) (535.51)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7,945.43 3,136.29
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, Plant & equipment (6,889.15) (6,016.86)
Proceeds from sale of property, Plant & equipment 116.56 -
Interest received 505.05 0.08
Dividend Received - -
Investments made in Subsidiaries (248.64) (50.55)
Invesment in Fixed Deposit 2.03 (2.03)
Lease Liability - -
Increase/(Decrease) in Non Current Other financial liabilities 373.76 =
Increase In Other Non Current Financials assets (2,137.36) -
Loans to related parties & Others 135.79 (31.52)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM /(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (8,141.96) (6,100.88)
. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loans from related parties 5,482.25 -
Loan from bank 5,824.80 6,644.41
Lease payments (6,071.91) -
Increase in Share Capital - 1,000.00
Redemption of preference shares (246.04) (108.97)
Bank Interest and charges (3,424.65) (4,542.85)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,664.45 2,992.59
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents 1,467.92 28.01
Add: Cash and Cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 169.89 141.88
Cash & Cash equivalents as at the end of the year 1,637.81 169.89
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per statement of cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents [note 7]
Cash in hand 67.53 29.07
Balances with banks - on current accounts 462.73 140.82
Bank Balances other than above
Balance as per statement of cash flows 1,637.81 169.89

Note:

(i) The standalone statement of cash flows has been prepared under the

indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7,
‘Statement of Cash Flows'.

As per our report of even date
FOR NIKHIL WARANKAR & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 153107W

L
PO
CA Nikhil Warankar
Proprietor _ Lol puns / *
Membership No.: 198983 | ~ U <
Pune, May 29, 2024 %, g

UDIN: 24198983BKFXYT9653 -

¥ 2
mest Kum,

~Birector /?
Py

~DIN:G4733060

May 28, 2023 /At Pune.

Sahay

May 29, 2023 At Pune.



EFC Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

17. (a) Equity share capital Zin Lakhs
Psiaaiie As at 31 As at 31 March
March 2024 2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year 6.25 6.25
Changes in equity share capital due to prior peried errors -
Restated balance as at the beginning of the year 6.25 6.25
Shares Issued during the year 0.00 0.00
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors -
Balance as at the end of the year 6.25 6.25
(b) Preference share capital Zin Lakhs
E As at 31 As at 31 March
Fama. March 2023 2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year 246.04 355.00
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance as at the beginning of the year 246.04 355.00
Shares issued during the year
Shares redeemed during the year (246.04) (108.96)
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Balance as at the end of the year 0.00 246.04
(c) Other equity
Reserves and Surplus Other ltems of | Total Equity
Securities 4 . Other attributable to
Particulars Senabsl Premium Capital Reta!ned Comprehensive Equity
Reserve Restiv Reserve Earnings Iicome Holders
Z in Lakhs ?in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs 2 in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs Z in Lakhs
Balance as at April 01, 2022 - - - -
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - - - -
Restated Balance as at April 01, 2022 - - - - - -
Addition during the year 998.75 - - - 998.75
Prior period adjustments i
Profit / (loss) for the year - - = - s &
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit & loss (net of tax) ) )
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - 998.75 - (416.73) 0.75 582.78
Balance as at April 01, 2023 - 998.75 - (416.73) 0.75 582.78
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - 14.72 - 14.72
Restated balance as at April 01, 2023 - 998.75 - (402.01) 0.75 597.50
Addition during the year - - - - -
Profit / (loss) for the year - - 4,280.28 - 4,280.28
i ified
Items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss (net of tax) ) ; N - (19.16) (19.16)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 998.75 - 3,878.27 (18.41) 4,858.62

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

Nikhil Warankar & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 1531

\
SOUMRAZ. /7
>
CA Nikhil Warankar { -

Proprietor

Membership No.: 198983
Pune, May 28, 2024 T,
UDIN: 24198983BKFXYT9653 < 5C

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors EFC Limited
CIN:U70200PN2014PLC 1506862

May 29, 2024 Pune

Page 4 of 46
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EFC Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

4. Capital work in progress

Particulars Z in Lakhs
Balance as at April 01, 2022 96.82
Additions 1,046.14
Capitalised during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,142.96
Balance as at April 01, 2023 1,142.96
Additions 1,114.49
Capitalised during the year #
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2,257.45

There are neither any projects overdue nor projects with cost over-run.

The ageing of Capital work-in-progress is given below as at March 31,2024 and March 31,2023

Ageing Shcedule as at 31st March 2024 2 in Lakhs
Capital Work in Progress ARIOMIE f CIP R 2 ot Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years
Projects in progress 1114.49 1,142.96 - - 2,257 .45
Projects temporarily suspended - - = - 5
Total 1,114.49 1,142.96 - - 2,257.45
Ageing Shcedule as at 31st March 2023 T in Lakhs
Capital Work in Progress Amptns of SHKh foea berigd Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years
Projects in progress 1,046.14 96.82 - - 1,142.96
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 1,046.14 96.82 - - 1,142.96
7. Intangible assets under development
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023
? in Lakhs
Balance at the beginnig of the year 15.25 3.90
Additions 31.38 11.35
Capitalised during the year < -
Balance at the end of the year 46.63 15.25
There are neither any projects overdue nor projects with cost over-run.
The ageing of intangibles under development is given below as at March 31,2024 and March 31,2023
Ageing Shcedule as at 31st March 2024
2 in Lakhs
= Amount of CWIP for a period
Intangible Assets Under Development Total
B P Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years <
Projects in progress 31.38 11.36 3.0 - 46.63
Total 31.38 11.35 3.90 - 46.63
Ageing Shcedule as at 31st March 2023
Zin Lakhs
: Amount of CWIP for a period Total
Intangible Assets Under Development
g P Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years
Projects in progress 11.35 3.90 - - 15.25
Total 11.35 15.25




EFC Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Financial assets

8. Investments - Non Current

Particulars

As at Mar 31, 2024

As at Mar 31, 2023

l. Investment in subsidiaries

(a) Investments in Equity Shares (Trade,
Unquoted) - (At Cost)

EFC Tech Sapce Private Limited

No of shares: 62,500 (40,000 as at March 31,
2023) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up.
(extent of holding 51.00% (31st March 2023 -
49%))

(b) Investments in Limited Liability Partnership
(at cost)

Paragraph Ventures LLP

Till 30.11.2023 EFC Ltd Holds 50% Of Capital

There was no retaian holding From 01/12/2023 to
31/03/2024

(c) Investments in Partnership Firms (at cost)

Rubic Smart Office
From 01/07/2022 to 30/03/2023 Efc Limited Hold
90% of capital

Monarch Workspace

(Extent of holding 50%) (31 March 2023 : 50%)
Sprint Workspace

(Extent of holding 99.90%) (31 March 2023 : Nil)

EFC Prime
(Extent of holding 99.99%%) (31 March 2023 : Nil)

II. Other Investments (Unquoted)
(at amortised cost)

EFC Office Infra-Airoli

EFC Office Infra-Chennai

EFC Prime

Rubic Workspaces LLP

EFC Office Spaces LLP

EMF Helathcare LLP

Equity shares of Saraswat Banks
EFC Reality LLP

Sprint Workspace

% Lakhs

¥ Lakhs

34.39

228.02

1.00

0.06
0.10

0.05
167.33

0.63

34.39

47.23

89.29

0.10
0.10
0.10
0.50
0.10
0.25
0.25

Total

421.57

172.93

a. i. Aggregate book value of quoted
investments
ii. Market Value of quoted investments

b. Aggregate book value of unquoted
investments

421.57

172.93
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

9. Other Non-Current Loans

Particulars

As at Mar 34, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good ( at amortized
cost)
Loans to realted parties*

¥ Lakhs

1565.79

Total

1565.79

“Loans due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other
person or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or

a member during FY 2023-24 is NIL (In the FY 2022-23 Rs.155.79 lakhs).

10. Other non-current financial assets

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 [ As at Mar 31, 2023
Z Lakhs
Unsecured, considered good ( at amortized
cost)
Security deposits(Landowner) 3630.76 1493.41
Total 3630.78 1493.41

11. Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (net)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023
? Lakhs
Opening deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) 314.77 217.25
Reversal of deferred tax on adoption of IND AS (718.80) (33.92)
Movement due to IND AS adoption 147.03 131.43
Closing deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (257.00) 314.77
Deferred tax assets
Lease liability 5,614.71 6,588.61
Provision for employee benefits(Gratuity) 11.01 412
Deposit (Ind AS Impact) 148.09 -
Deferred Income (Deposit) 96.39 -
Gratuity Payable (Provisions - Current Liab) 0.42 -
Total 5,870.62 6,592.73
Deferred tax liabilities
Fair value of right of use 4,419.22 6,219.10
Property, plant & equipments 156.85 58.86
Investment in Sub Lease 1,417.30 -
Defferred Loan Processing Charges 296 -
Deposit from Client (Ind AS Impact) 131.29 -
6,127.61 6,277.96




EFC Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

Financial assets
12. Trade receivables

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023
Z Lakhs
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good* 5570.19 1538.26
Unsecured, considered doubtful -
Less: Provision for expected credit loss -
Total 5,570.19 1,538.26

Note:

Debts due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly
with any other person or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any
director is a partner or a director or a member is Rs.14.26 lakhs (for last year - Rs.736.86 lakhs )
* Includes receivable from related parties. (Refer Note - 46)

Trade receivables ageing as on March 31, 2024

¥ in Lakhs
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
Less than 6 months | 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo;z;l::n 3 Toal

(i) Undisputed trade receivables—considered good 4,002.61 338.52 | 1,229.06 c - 5,570.19
(ii) Undisputed trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk . 5 i - - -
(iif) Undisputed trade Receivables — credit
impaired i _ - % % -
(iv) Disputed trade Receivables— considered good - - - - = o
v) Disputed trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk ] - 5 = P- -
(vi) Disputed trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - . - z

Total 4,002.61 338.52 46.04 - - 5,570.19
Trade receivables ageing as on March 31, 2023

T in Lakhs
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars h
Less than € months | 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo’;i:r:" 8 Toal

(i) Undisputed trade receivables—considered good 1,472.90 19.32 46.04 - ~ 1,538.26
(i} Undisputed trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk . - - - - -
(iii) Undisputed trade Receivables — credit
impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed trade Receivables— considered good - - - - - -
v) Disputed trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk e 2 - - -
(vi) Disputed trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -

Total 1,472.90 19.32 - - - 1,638.26
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

13. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023
? Lakhs
Balances with Banks
On current accounts 444.48 119.32
On Escrow Account 18.25 21.50
Other Bank Balance 1107.55 i
Cash on Hand 67.53 29.07
Total 1,637.81 169.89

14. Other bank balances

Particulars

As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023

¥ Lakhs

Deposits having original maturity more than 3

months and uptc 12 months - 2.03
Total 2.03
15. Current loans
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023
% Lakhs
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to related parties. 20.0C 0.00
Total 20.00 -

Loans due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with
any other person or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a
partner or a director or a member during FY 2023-24 is Rs. 20 Lakhs ( in the FY 2022-23 Rs.NIL).

16. Other current assets

Particulars As at Mar 31,2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023 g‘: f’;ol‘;:’ As at April 01, 2021
¥ Lakhs
Unsecured, considered good
Balance with statutory authorities 760.93 19.06 40.23 67.11
Other deposit 1419.58 3291.46 496.59 286.78
Advance to supplier for services 1943.90 769.71 267.74 34.90
Other advances* 0.00 766.45 763.70 150.89
Advance to employees 0.15 0.77 - 5.68
Assets held for sale 1046.64 47543 - -
Prepaid expenses 20.28 889.00 2.78 0.04
Defferred Loan Processing Charges 11.75
Total 5203.23 6211.87 1571.03 _~545.40

Other advances includes advances provide sidiaries, associates, Joint Ventures N

and other related parties for business
(Refer note no- 46)

o
f Ly :f"
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Financial Liabilities
18. Borrowings

Particulars As at Mar 31,2024 | As at Mar 31. 2023 A;; "’;:;Z’ As at April 01, 2021
¥ Lakhs
Non-current:
Secured - at amortized cost
*From banks 9010.71 1,562.83 15.51 1565.33
Unsecured - at amortized cost
*From banks, financial institutions & others (0.16) 1,522.91 25.32 28.14
Total 9,010.54 3,085.74 40.83 183.47

Loans secured by banks:

1. The term loan of Rs.1700 lakhs was sanctioned on 05th January, 2023 by ICICI Bank, repayable within 132 months with the interest rate of 8.50% p.a. secured

against the mortgate of property situated at Office Premises 202, 2nd Floor, Marisoft 3 Building, Vadgaon Sheri, Pune.

2. The term loan of Rs.2000 lakhs was sanctioned on 05th December, 2022 by HDFC Bank, repayable within 132 months with the interest rate of 8.75% p.a.

secured against receivables arising from premise situated at 4th Floor, West Tower, Marisoft 3, Marie Gold, S.No. 15, Near D-Mart,C

Nagar, Vadgaon Sheri, Pune.

4. The term loan of Rs.1574 lakhs was sanctioned on 30th August, 2022 by HDFC Bank, repayable within 144 months with the interest rate of 8.40% p.a. secured
against receivables arising from premise situated at 1st Floor, West Tower, Marisoft 3, Marie Gold, S.No. 15, Near D-Mart,C

Vadgaon Sheri, Pune.

6. The New Car Loan of Rs. 280 lakhs was sanctioned on 22nd August 2023 by HDFC Bank, repayable within 60 months with the interest rate of 8.50% p.a.

secured against the motor vehicle.

8. The Term Loan of Rs. 2350 Lakhs was sanctioned on 05th July, 2023 by HDFC Bank, repayble within 120 months with the interest rate of 9.10% p.a. secured

against the 3rd Floor Office, Marisoft IT Park, East Wing, Marigold Complex, Kalyani Nagar, Pune- 411014 .

The company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any of the banks.

The company has used the borrowings from the banks for the purpose for which the same

was sanctioned.

The charge has been registered with the ROC amounting to Rs 9,868.95 (March 31, 2023 : 1,888.95)

19. Lease liability

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023
Zin Lakhs
Non current lease liability 17,647.70 18,263.65
Total 17,647.70 18,263.65
Note:

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 8.85% p.a.
The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 70.41

20. Other non-current financial liabilities

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023
Z Lakhs
At amortized cost:
*Security deposits 2,613.84 2,390.15
*Other deposits 267.35 117.27
Total 2,881.19 2,507.43

ybage Tower Road, Kalyani

ybage Tower Road, Kalyani Nagar,



EFC Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

21. Non current provisions

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023
Current Z in Lakhs
Provision for employee benefits [
*Gratuity 43.76 13.52
Other provision - -
Total 43.76 13.52

22. Current borrowings

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 l As at Mar 31, 2023
% Lakhs

Secured - at amortized cost
From banks - 3,772.22
Unsecured - at amortized cost
From banks, financial institutions & others - 99.90
Loan to related parties 9,354.37 -

Total 9,354.37 3,872.12

* Represent unsecured loans repayable after 3 years in a single bullet payment with interest rate of 12% p.a.,

refer Note no.46

23. Lease liability

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023
T in Lakhs
Current lease liability 4,661.21 4,362.06
Total 4,661.21 4,362.06
Note:

Lease liability payable during the next financial year is shown separatly under current lease liability




EFC Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

24. Trade payables:

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023
¥ Lakhs
Trade payables* 3.30 617.34
Total 3.30 617.34

The average credit period for the creditors ranges between 30 to 90 days. The interest
payment on MSME payments did not arise during the year.
* Includes payables to related parties. (Refer Note - 46)

FY 23-24 ¥ in Lakhs
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years
(i) MSME -
(i) Others 3.30 - - 3.30
(iii)Disputed dues - MSME -
iv)Disputed dues - Others -
Total 3.30 - - - 3.30
FY 22-23 Zin Lakhs
OQutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years
(i) MSME -
(i) Others 529.08 62.42 25.84 617.34
(iii)Disputed dues - MSME =
|(iv)Disputed dues - Others -
Total 529.08 62.42 617.34

25. Other Current financial liabilities

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023
Z Lakhs
Creditors for capital expenditure 21.51 680.69
Total 21.51 680.69
26. Other current liabilities
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023
Z Lakhs
Statutory payables - 682.98
Accrued payroll - 37.67
Advance from debtors 56.49 406.38
Deferred income 382.97 41513
Other advances - -
Total 439.46 1,542.15

27. Current provisions

Particulars

As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity

Other provisions
Provisions for expense

Z Lakhs

0.64

Total




EFC Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

28. Revenue from operations Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs in Lakhs
Rent income 17,454.40 8,124.06
Interior designing 1,101.24 1,217.31
Brokerage & commission - 95.00
Other operating revenue 4.216.17 2,481.20
Total 22,771.81 11,917.57
29. Other income Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs in Lakhs
(a) Interest
On other financial assets 218.39 96.92
On income tax refund - 0.05
Other interest income 286.66 -
(b) Dividend income
Dividend from investments in shares of bank - 0.05
C) Other non-operating income
Other non-operating income - 0.00
Total 505.05 97.02
30. Cost of services Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs in Lakhs
Electricity charges 1,138.86 864.89
Housekeeping manpower charges 443.94 353.65
Interior fitout expenses 69.63 300.35
Maintenance charges 670.97 430.98
Rent expense (253.93) 49.66
Security charges 357.79 283.08
Conversion in stock in trade - 1,375.47
Other expenses 148.92 137.25
Total 2,576.19 3,795.33
30. Changes in Stock Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Opening Stock
Conversion in stock in trade
Closing Stock

Rs in Lakhs

400.00
4,452.71
1,446.64

Total

_3,406.07




31. Employee benefits expense

Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Rs in Lakhs
Salaries and allowances 864.14 47717
Contributions to provident fund and other funds 2553 6.65
Staff welfare expenses 23.85 11.83
Total 913.52 495.64

As per Indian Accounting Standard 19 “Employee benefits”, the disclosures as defined are given

below:
Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution to defined contribution plan, recognised as expenses for the year is as under:

Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs in Lakhs
Employer’s contribution to provident fund 16.65 11.30
Employer’s contribution to superannuation fund
Employer's contribution to pension scheme
32. Finance costs Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Rs in Lakhs
interest on lease liability 1,709.15 1,403.18
Interest expense - others 1,058.59 247.53
Other borrowing costs 641.81 0.35

Finance IND-AS 15.10 -

Total 3,424.65 1,651.05

33. Depreciation & amortisation expense Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs in Lakhs
Depreciation of property, plant & equipments 408.42 240.95
Amortisation of right of use assets 4,212.97 4,269.79
Depreciation of RoU Assets 1,152.68 -
4,510.74

Total

B

774.07

~ )



34. Other expenses Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs in Lakhs

Brokerage charges 171.91 87.50
Fuel expenses 17.52 18.60
Housekeeping material 94.74 67.21
Internet expenses 125.36 47.75
Marketing expenses 26.61 12.55
Office expenses 132.13 64.16
Pest control charges 9.70 11.57
Rent paid 65.50 27.18
Repair & maintenance 75.90 44.21
Stamp duty and other charges 30.91 28.30
Travelling expenses 78.73 50.47
Audit fees 5.00 7.00
Insurance 20.41 9.61
Water Charges 60.38 0.00
Sundry balance w/off 0.00 1.11
Professional & legal expenses 316.59 83.14
Reimbursement 11.82

Rates & taxes 92.85 35.23
Sub-Contracting 700.00

Miscellaneous expenses 49.60 6.94

Total 2,085.67 612.53

35. Income tax expense

Income tax recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particulars

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Current tax expense
Current year
Short provision in respect of earlier years

Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Short / (excess) provision in respect of earlier years

(32.60)

535.51

(131.43)

Total income tax expense

(32.60) i




Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
- Net actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 3.85 0.11
3.85 0.11

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate

Particuiars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Profit before tax 1,662.31 949.29
Enacted tax rate in India 25.17% 29.12%
Computed tax expense at enacted tax rate 418.37 276.43
Tax effect of:
Non-deductible tax expenses - 408.48
Deductible tax expenses 11.66 (149.41)
Tax Expense reported in statement of profit & Loss 430.03 535.51

36. Earnings per share

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (In Rs) 6,848.45 906.08
Diluted earnings per share (In Rs) 6,848.45 906.08
Nominal value per share (In Rs.) 10.00 10.00
(a) Profit attributable to equity shareholders (used as
numerator)
Profit atiributable to equity holders for basic eamings 4,280.28 545.45
Profit attributable to equity holders 4,280.28 545.45
(b) Weighted average number of equity shares (used as
denominator)

Opening balance of issued equity shares 6.25 6.25
Effect of shares issued during the year, if any - -
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic 6.25 6.25

EPS
Effect of dilution - -
Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted E 6.25 6.25

Note:
1. Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the Net profit attributable to the equity shareholders
of the company by the Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
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(All amounts in rupees lakhs except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

38

39

Fair value measurements

(a) Financial instruments by category

Financial assets

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
X : Total 5 Total
st FVIPL | Fvroct | Amortised | oong | RvipL | Fvrog | Amortised| o
st Cost
. Value Value
Trade receivables - - 5,570.19 5,570.19 - - 1,538.26 1,5638.26
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,637.81 1,637.81 - - 169.89 169,89
Bank Deposits - - 2.03 2.03
Investments (other than in 20.00 20,00 - -
subsidiary)
Other financial assets - - 3,630.78 3,630.78 - - - -
Total - - 10,858.77 10,858.77 - - 1,710.18 1,710.18
Financial liabilities
3 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
: : Taotal i Total
o iy FVTPL FVTOC A""';’::f"d Carying | FVIPL | FvTOCI A“:o'::"d Carrying
Value Value
Trade payables - - 3.30 3.30 - 3 " o
Lease liabilities - 4,661.21 4,661.21 - - 4,362.06 4,362.06
Borrowings 9,354.37 9,354.37 3,872.12 3,872.12
Other financial liabilities - - 21.51 21.51 - - 1,542.15 1,542.15
Total - - 14,040.40 14,040.40 - - 9,776.33 9,776.33

The carrying amounts of cash & cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans and trade

value due to their nature.

payables as at 31st March 2024 and 2023 approximate the fair

Carrying amounts of bank deposits, other financial assets, borrowings and other financial liabilities which are subsequently measured at amortised cost
alsa approximate the fair value due to their nature in each of the periods presented. Fair value measurement of lease liabilities is not required. Fair value
of investments carried at amortised cost is Rs. 1.40 lakhs and Rs.1.40 lakhs as at March 31, 2024 and 2023.

Fair value hierarchy

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). The fair value of financial
The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values, This team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO) and the audit

committee (AC). Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the CFO, AC and the val

three months.

luation team at least once every

The cost of unquoted investments included in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy approximate their fair value because there is a wide range of
possible fair value measurements and the cost represents estimate of fair value within that range.

The fair values for security deposits was calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate/borrowing r;
classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable market inputs,

P




Valuation technique used to determine fair value:
- Discounted cash flow approach; appropriate market borrowing rate of the entity as of each balance sheet date used for

The following table summarises financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and financial assets that are not
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are required):

As at March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Trade receivables - - 5,570.18 5,570.18
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,637.81 1,637.81

Bank Deposits - = & -
Investments (other than in

subsidiary) - - 20.00 20.00
Other financial assets - - 3,630.78 3,630.78
Total - - 10,858.77 10,858.77

Financial Liabilities

Trade payables - - 3.30 3.30
Lease liabilities - - 4,661.21 4,661.21
Borrowings - - 9,354.37 9,354.37
Other financial liabilities - - 21.51 21.51
Total - - 14,040.40 14,040.40
As at March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Levsi 3 Total
Financial Assets
Trade receivables - - 1,538.26 1,5638.26
Cash and cash equivalents - - 169.89 169.89
Investments (other than in
subsidiary) - - 2.03 2.03
Other financial assets - - - »
Total - - 1,710.18 1,710.18
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables - - - -
Lease liabilities - - 4,362.06 4,362.06
Borrowings - - 3,872.12 3,872.12
Other financial liabilities - - 1,542.15 1,542.15

Total - - 9,776.33 9,776.33
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46 Related Party Disclosures

(a) List of related parties with whom there are transactions during the year:

Particulars

Entity Name

(i) Ultimate holding company
(ii) Holding Company

(iii) Key Managerial Personnel
Director
Director
Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Preference Shareholder

iv) Enterprises significantly
infliuenced by directors and/ or
their relatives

EFC (I) Limited

EFC (1) Limited

Umesh Kumar Sahay

Abhishek Narbaria

Amit Narbaria

Gayathri Srinivasan lyer as on 31-03-2024
Mr. Kunaal Agaste

Pratik Makkar

Brantford Ltd

Whitehills Interior Limited -
Pragraph Ventures LLP
EFC Tech Space Pvt Ltd
EFC (1) Limited

TCC Concepts Ltd

EFC Prime

Sprint Workspace
Monarch Workspace

Altr Software Services Limited
EMF Clinic Private Limited

ARARA ity
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Notes to the d fi i for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in rupees lakhs except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

47 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the “Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number” as allocated after filing of the
M A ingly, the discl in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2023 has been made in the financial
staty based on inft ion received and available with the Company, Further in view of the management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be
payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘the Act) is not expected to be material.
The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier in this regard.

3 As at| As at|
Particulars
31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
i) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act as remaining unpaid as at 31 March - -
ii) Interest due thereon due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Acl as remaining unpaid on 31 March - -
iil) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Adt, beyond the appointed day during the 175.03 -
year,
iv) Interest paid other than under section 16 of the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year. 265 -
V) Interest paid under section 16 of MSMED Act to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the - -
appointed day during the year,
vi) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already made. - -
vil) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years. = -
48 Additional regulatory information
Analytical Ratios
Ratios Numerator Denominator Asat 31 As at 31 March 2023 |% of Variance
March 2024
Current ratio (in times) Current assets Current liability 1.20 2 1.04 15.56
Debt equity ratio (in times) Total debt Shareholders equity 1.85 0.00 100.00
Debt service coverage ratio (in [Eamings for Debt Debt services ( Interest and lease 0.86 0.00 100.00
times) [Services ( Profit after tax |p + Principle
+Depreceation +Finance
cost +profit on sale of
property plan and
equipment)
Return an equity ratio (in %) Net Profit for the year Average shareholders equity 0.88 4.31 (0.80)
Trade receivables turnover ratio |Revenue from operations |Average trade receivables 6.41 0.00 100.00
Trade payables turnover ratic|Other expenses Average trade payables 6.72 0.00 100.00
Net capital tumover ratio Revenue from operations |Working capital (current assests- 10.91 0.00 100.00
current liabilities)
Net profit ratio (in %) Net Profit for the year Revenue from operations 0.19 0.00 100.00
Return on capital employed (in °| Profit before tax and Capital employed (Tangible Net 0.36 0.12 2.01
finance cost worth + Total debt + Deferred tax
liability)
Return on investment (in %) Income generated from  |Average Investment funds in 0.09 0.00 100.00
treasury investments |treasury investment)

Explanation for variance

1. Current Ratio: The ratio has been impacted due to increase in security deposits and trade receivables

2, Debt Equity Ratio: The ratio has been impacted due to increase in debt

3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio: The ratio has been impacted due to repayment of bank loan and increase in EBIDTA
4. Return on Equity: The ratio has been impacted due to profit of current year

5. Trade receivables Tumover Ratio: The ratio has been impacted due to increase in average trade receivables and turnover.
6. Trade payables tumover ratio: The ratio has been impacted due to increase in average trade payables and turnover.
7. Net Capital tumover ratio: The ratio has been impacted due to increase in turnaver

8. Net Profit Ratio: The net profit is increased due to increase in tumover

9. Return on Capital Employed: The ratio has been impacted due to increase in profit

10. Return on Investment: The ratio has been impacted due to increase in Investment during the year

48 Subsequent Event

The Company has evaluated subsequent event from the balance sheet date through May 17, 2023, the date at which financial statments were available to
be issued and determined no event has occured that would require adjustment and disclosure in the financial statement.

50 Previous year comparatives

Previous year's figures have been anged/regrouped necessary to conform to current year's presentation.
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46 Related Party Disclosures
(a) List of related parties with whom there are transactions during the year:

Particulars Entity Name
(i) Ultimate holding company EFC (1) Limited
(ii) Holding Company EFC (I) Limited

(iii) Key Managerial Personnel
Director|Umesh Kumar Sahay
Director|Abhishek Narbaria
Director|Amit Narbaria
Additional Independent Director Gayathri Srinivasan lyer Was Independent Director
As on 31-03-2024
Also Mr. Kunaal Agaste Was Independent Director
Preference Shareholder Pratik Makkar

iv) Enterprises significantly
inflivenced by directors and/ or

their relatives Brantford Ltd

Whitehills Interior Limited
Pragraph Ventures LLP

EFC Tech Space Pvt Ltd

EFC (I) Limited

TCC Concepts Ltd

EFC Prime

Sprint Workspace

Monarch Workspace

Altr Software Services Limited
EMF Clinic Private Limited




b)

Transactions with the related parties are as follows:

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Sales

Brantford Limited

Whitehills Interior Limited

Altr Software Services Limited

Expenses

Brantford Limited
Whitehills Interior Limited
TCC Concepts Limited
Pratik Makkar

Directors' Remuneration
Amit Narbaria

Abhishek Narbaria
Umesh Sahay

Purchases of Fixed Assets
Sprint Workspace
EFC Prime

Investments

EFC Tech Space Pvt Ltd
Sprint Workspace

EFC Prime

Monarch

Loans & Advances taken/(Repaid):

Abhishek Narbaria(Business
Advance)

EFC Tech Space Pvt Ltd
Paragraph Ventures LLP
TCC Concepts Limited
Amit Narbaria

Monarch Workspaces

Altrr Software

Brantford LTD

Sprint Workspace

EFC Prime

Whitehills Interior Limited

Borrowings

EFC (1) Limited
Umesh Sahai
Abhishek Narbaria

Advances & Security Deposits
EMF Clinic Private Limited

2,064.31
25.24
151.05

673.62
700.00
110.73

75.78

24,00
36.00
36.00

250.00
250.00

1.00
0.10
0.05

273.95
(41.83)
80.52
138.58
158.62
150.69
156.26
(319.33)
39.81

9,577.80

30.07

2,187.96
8.70

13.61

183.56

6.00
36.00
36.00

1,918.99
176.49




c)

Outstanding balances with the related parties are as follows: .

Particulars A's‘ e fum
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Loans & Advances

EFC Tech Space Pvt Lid 627.30 353.34
Paragraph Ventures LLP 328.93 336.88
TCC Concepts Ltd 83.55 2.54
Monarch Workspace 227.97 221.18
Sprint Workspace 156.26 -
EFC Prime (302.73) -
Brantford Limited 150.69 -
Altrr Software 158.62 -
Investments

EFC Tech Space Pvt Ltd 0.63 0.63
Rubic Smart Office - 47.05
Rubic Tech Space LLP 0.50 0.50
Monarch Workspace 0.05 89.29
Sprint Workspace 1.00 -
Trade Receivables

Rubic Smart Office - 253.63
Brantford Limited - 73725
Whitehills Interior Limited 14.26

Trade Payables

TCC Concepts Ltd 86.36 -
Borrowings

EFC (I) Limited 11,081.70 1,503.89
Advances & Security Deposits

Whitehills Interior Limited (0.09) 39.90
Brantford Limited 60.00 -
EFC Clinic Private Limited 51.27 -

d) Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties
Transactions with the related parties are made on normal commercial terms and

Outstanding balances of related parties at the year-end are unsecured and interest

free and settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company
has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related” . -- 3
parties (31 March 2022: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year _"/*"““\;
through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which ~ ~ °
the related party operates. R Dl e
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Note 36: Leases

This note explains the impact of the Ind AS 116, Leases on the Company’s financial statements.

(i) Amounts recognised in balance sheet
The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Right-of-use assets

Particul N
articulars ote it Aead
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Leasehold land 6 ] a =
Leasehold land and Building [ 23,190.22 21,356.80
Building 5 - -
Total 23,190.21 21,356.80
Lease Liabilities
Particulars Nt A
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current 4,661.21 2,507.43
Non-current 17,647.70 18,263.65
Total 17,647.70 2,507.43
(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 421297 4,269.79
Interest expense (included in finance costs) 2,178.95 1.403.18
Total 6,391.92 5,672,97
(iii) Maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2024: (Excluding Interest) -Undiscounted value
Non-current lease liahilities | Current lease liabilities
Less than 1 year - 6,225.74
Between 1 year and 5 years 16,809.63 -
5 years and above 1,966.81
Total 18,876.43 6,225.74

{iii) Maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023: (Excluding Interest) -Undiscounted value

Non-current lease liabilities

Current lease liabilities

Less than 1 year
Between 1 year and 5 years

5 years and above

Total

» 6,071.91

19,029.05 -
2,758.58

21,787.62 6,071.91
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Note 37: Employee benefit plans

37.1 Defined contribution plan

The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees. Where employees leave the plans prior to full
vesting of the contributions, the contributions payable by the Company are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are determined under the relevant schemes and / or statute
and charged to the statement of profit or loss.

37.2 Defined benefit plans

(a) Gratuity
The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The benefit payable is the higher of the amount calculated as per
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 or the Company scheme applicable to the employee. The benefit vests upon completion of five years
of continuous service and once vested it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination of employment. The gratuity benefits
payable to the employees are based on the employee’s senvice and drawn salary at the time of leaving. The employees do not
contribute towards this plan and the full cost of providing these benefits are met by the Company. In case of death while in service, the
gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting. The gratuity plan is funded plan.

(b) Risk exposure to defined benefit plans
The plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of
instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can
result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-
valuation period.

Interest risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

Longevity risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an
increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31st March, 2023, The
present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the
projected unit credit method.

(c) Significant assumptions
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.

(d)

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate 7.22% 7.52%
Salary escalation rate 8.00% 6.00%

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Balances of defined benefit plan

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation 45.41 14.16
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net (asset) / liability 45.41 | —=__ 1416
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(e)- Expenses recognised for defined benefit plan and movement of plan assets and liabilities
Following is the amount recognised in statement of profit and loss, other comprehensive income and movement in

(1)

(3)

defined benefit liability:

Particluars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 21, 2023

Movements in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation:

Obligation at the beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial (gains) / losses arising changes in
financial assumptions

Actuarial (gains) / losses from experience
adjustments

Benefits Paid

Obligation at the end of the year

14.16
14.87

1.07
15.31

14.18

14.16

Reconciliation of plan assets

March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at
fair value

Interest income

Return on plan assets (excluding interest
income)

Contributions By Employer

Benefits paid

Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair
value

(Gratuity cost recognized in the statement of profit and loss

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Current service cost
Interest cost (Net)

14.87
1.07

14.16

Net gratuity cost recognized in the
statement of profit and loss

15.93
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37.3

Gratuity cost recognized in the other As at As at
comprehensive income {OCI) : March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation for the
year

Due to Change in financial assumptions 13,58 s
Due to change in demographic assumption - .
Due to experience adjustments 1.73 u
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest = =
Net (income) ! expense for the period 15.31 -
recognized in OCI|

Category wise plan assets

No contribution has been made toward plan assets

Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity
analysis given below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Impact on defined benefit obligation of gratuity
Discount Rate+100 Basis Points 40.15 -
Discount Rate-100 Basis Points 51.75 -
Salary Growth +100 Basis Points 51.25 -
Salary Growth -100 Basis Paints 40.45 -
Attrition Rate +100 Basis Points 44.31 -
Attrition Rate -100 Basis Points 46.61 -
Mortality Rate 10% Up 45,39 -

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely
that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
Data related to 2023 is not available in acturial report, so same has been reported as Nil

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using
the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit
obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The weighted average duration of the projected benefit obligation of gratuity is 15.33 years as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 -
14.51 years).

Cash flow projection from the fund
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting

Funded Plan - Gratuity

Present Values Actual Values
1st following year 1.81 1.91
2nd following year 1.57 1.77
3rd following year 1.39 1.69
4th following year 1.28 1.67
5th following year 1.05 1.46
sum of years 6 to 10th i 4.44 7.63

Other long-term employee benefit obligation

The leave obligation covers the Company's liability for earned leave. Under these compensated absences plans, leave encashment is payable to
all eligible employees on separation from the Company due to death, retirement, superannuation or resignation; at the rate of daily salary, as per
accumulation of leave days as at the end of relevant period. Refer notes 21 and 31 with respect to item of ba[ance sheet and=proﬁt or loss where
such provision / charge has been presented. &
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44 Financial risk management
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to

The Company's finance team is responsible for liquidity and funding. In addition, processes and policies related to
such risks are overseen by the senior management.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The following are the contractual maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities, based on contractual cash flows:

31 March 2024

45

Contractual cash flows

Contractual maturities of Carrying j Less than 1 ,
financial liabilities value To) year It yoorn e
Trade and other payables 3.30 3.30 3.30 - -
31 March 2023

. Contractual cash flows
Contractual maturities of Carrying Less than 1
financial liabilities value Tom year 12 e =0 yoats
Trade and other payables 617.34 617.34 529.08 62.42 25.84

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the
Company's income. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk
The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk as all transactions are denominated in a Indian currency, which
is its functional and reporting currency.

Capital Management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of
dividends to ordinary shareholders.

As at As at

31 Mar 2024| 31 Mar 2023
Total liabilities : 44, 845.28 35,369.02
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 1,637.81 169.89
Adjusted net debt 43,207.47 35,199.13
Total equity 4,864.87 835.06
Net debt to equity ratio 8.88 42.15




EFCLIMITED
(CIN:U70200PN2014PLC150686)
Reg Office: Unit No.1,2,3 & 4, 6th Floar, V B Capitol, 5 No.209(P), CTS, Pune - 411007

Standalone Segment information for the Quarter ended 30th September, 2023
Additional information pursuant to ion 52(4) and R ion 54 (2) of d and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disci i s) Regulations. 2015. as
amended as at and for the quarter and half year ended September 30, 2023

Quarter ended Year Ended
srNa |Particulars 31.03.2024 3122023 31032023 31.03.2024 31032023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited;
1 Debt equity ratio (in times) (Refer Note a) 11.42 12.04 (152.64) 11.42 (152.64)
2 Debt service coverage ratio (in times) (Refer Note b) 11.86 13.52 130.15 12.66 147.55
3 Interest service coverage ratio {in times) (Rerer Note ¢) 198 134 {0.33). 1.58 0.62
4 Capital redempticn reserve (Rs Lakhs) NA NA NA NA NA
5 Debenture ption reserve (Rs Lakhs) NA NA NA NA NA
6 Net worth (Rs Lakhs) (Refer Note n) 1,461.55 1,068.06 {16.01) 1,461.55 (16.01)
7 te;h[:;nﬁt after tax (excluding Other comprehensive income)(Rs 249.19 341,91 (419.61) 79118 (306.60)
8 Current Ratio (in times) (Refer Note d) 1.38 1.36 0.43 138 043
9 Long term debt to working Capital (in times) [Refer Note e) 2.06 192 10.89 2.06 10.89
1o |Bad debts to Accounts Receivable Ratio(%) (Refer Note f) {not % i i i o
annualised
11 Current Liability Ratio (in times) (Refer Note g 021 0.20 0.32 0.21 0.32
12 Total debts to Total Assets (in times) (Refer Note h) 0.35 0.31 0.12 0.35 0.12
13 Debtors turnover (in number of days) (Refer Note i} 17.44 31.28 46.60 1898 44.29
Average Debtor 1,035.56 1612.72 1,035.56 1,035.56 4,035.56
14 Inventory turnover (in number of days) (Refer Note j) NA NA NA NA NA
is Operating Margin{%) (Refer Note k) 19% 25% -5% 22% 7%
16 Net Profit Margin(%) (Refer Note I} includi i item 8% 7% -21% 8% -7%
16a | Net Profit Margin(%) (Refer Note m) excluding exceptional item 8% 7% -21% 8% 7%
Notes :
The following definitions have been considered for the purpose of I; of ratios and other i
Sr No Ratios Formulae
(o)
a) Dbt Equity Ratio %l
b Debt Service Coverage Ratio Profit befa; ional items & tax + Interest expenses + depreciation & i - current tax expense
Interest heduled principal flong-term debt and lease liabilities during the period®™
d Interest Service Coverags Ritio Prafit before exceptional items & tax + interest expenses
Interest expense
d) Current Ratio Surent Asues?
Current Liabilities™
e) Long term debt to working Capital m,
Bad debts™

n Bad debts to Accounts Recaivable Ratio Average trade receivable

Curent liabilities®!

lies
& i
g urrent Liability Ratio Total Liabilities™

Total Debt ®!

h] T ts to Total Assets Rati
) ‘otal Debts to Tot sets Ratio S

: Average trade ble(i gulatory balances wharevs I x no of days
i) Debtors Turnover
Grass Sales
Average Inventory
i Inventary Turnaver

. Cost of goods sold"™™

Operating Profit {Profit befare tax and exceptional item + interest - other income

Revenue from operatian

Net Profit after Tax (including exceptional item)

Revenue from operation

Net Profit after Tax (excluding exceptional item

Revenue fram operation

Kkl Operating Margin{%)

1 Net Profit Margin including exceptional item(%)

m) Net Profit Margin excluding exceptional item(%)

Net Worth has been computed on the basis as stated In Clause 2 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Usting Obigations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015 i e Net

ol worth as defined in sub-section (57) of section 2 of the Companies Act. 2013.

Notes :

(1) Tatal Debt Long term barrowings (including current maturities of long term borrawings) , lease lizbilities (current and non current), shart term borrawings and interest accrued on debts

(2] Total Equity : Issued share capital, other eaulty, unsecured perpetual securities and non-contraling Interest .

(3] For the purpase of ion scheduled principal of lang term b gs does not include prepayments (including prepayment by exercise of call/put option)

(4) Current Assets as per balance sheet , assets held for sale and current partion of regulatary Assets

(S) Current Liabilities as per balance sheet liabilities classified as held for sale and current partion of regulatory liabilities

(6) Working Capital : Current assets - Current liabilities {excluding current maturities of long term debt, lease liability and interest accrued on long term barrowings)

(7) Bad debts include provision for doubtful debts

(8) Total liabilities as per balance sheet, liabilities classified held for sale and requlatary liabilities ~ i
(9) Total Assets as per balance sheet, assets held for sale and requlatory assets & A RATRA]
(10) Cost of Goads Sold: Coslof Fuel, Raw Material Consumed, Purchase Of Finished Goods and Spares (Increase)/decrease in Stock-in-Trade and Wark In Progress Lo —
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(M

Financial Risk Management .

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables and other borrowings. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company's principal financial assets include
security deposits, trade & other receivables and cash and deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's
objectives, policies and pracesses for measuring and managing risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises principally from
trade receivables, unbilled revenue, cash & cash equivalents and deposits with banks.

Trade receivables and unbilled revenue
The Company eams its revenue from customers by renting out properties, business management service,

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
Company perferms ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and limits the amount of credit
extended when deemed necessary, but generally requires no collateral. The Company also maintains allowances
for potential credit losses. In estimating the required allowances, the Company takes into consideration the overall
quality and ageing of the receivable portfolio, the existence of a limited amount of credit insurance and specifically
identified customer and vendor risks.

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk from trade receivables by establishing a maximum credit period of
45 days for its customers, An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for
major customers. The calculation is based on historical data.

Based on the business environment in which the Company operates, management considers that there is
significant increase in credit risk for trade receivables if the payments are more than 30 days past due
and the trade receivables are in default (credit impaired) if the payments are more than 90 days past due.
The Company has not experienced any significant impairment losses in respect of trade receivables in
the past years.

Cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks
The Company held cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits with scheduled/nationalised banks in India.

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date was:

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 months Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

Particulars As at As at
31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
Other non-current financial assets 3,630,78 1,493.41
Cash and cash equivalents 1,637.81 169.89
Other current financial assets - -
Totai 5,268.59 1,663.30

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using Life time Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

Particulars As at
31 Mar 2024
Trade receivables 5,570.19

5,570,19




(i)
(al

(b

—

(iii)

(iv)

Provision for expected credit losses:
Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses

The Company has assets where the counter- parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where
the risk of default is low.

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life time expected credit losses

The Company has customers with strong capacity to meet the obligations and therefore the risk of default is
negligible. On account of the adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses ECL model to assess the impairment
loss. The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the ECL allowance for trade receivables. Below mentioned
is the movement of impairment lass recognised on financial assets using lifetime expected credit loss method.

.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables is as below:

0.60 days | 51:120 |More than|
Ageing Not due 4 days past | 120 days Total Provision Net

past due

due past due

Gross carrying
amount as 31 March -| 1,72395| 1,538.98| 2307.26| 5,570.19 - 5,570.19
2024
Gross carrying
amount as 31 March - | 1.472.90 - 65.36 1,538.26 - 1,538.26
2023

Reconciliation of impairment loss provisions
The movement in the aliowance for impairment in respect of financial assets during the year was as follows:

Particulars Trade receivables

Balance as at 31 March 2022 "
Impairment loss recognised -

Amounts written off -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 -
Impairment loss recognised -
Amounts written off -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 -

)‘;j 2
Based on histaric default rates, the Company believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
any other assets as the amounts are insignificant. F N
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1 Company overview
EFC Limited ('the Company’) was incorporated on 19/02/2014 as a Public Limited Company under the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is anuaged inthe
business of renting of immovable property (Co-warking spaces), Bulding Work Contracts projects, Businass services, & and

Projact Manageamnt Senvices. The address of its carporate office is Unit No 1,2,3 and 4, 6th Floor,VB Capital S No 209(P), CTS Pune, Maharashtra - 411007.

2 Summary of significant accounting policles

fal of i and basls of
The financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared ir in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") nofffied under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Cq ies (Indian A d Rules, 2016 (as amanded from time to time),

and presentation requirements of Divisicn Il of Scheduls lll to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS liant Schedule Ill), as i to the financial

Thase financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual and going cancern basis except for certain financial assets and
liabilities which are measured at fair value. The financial statements are prasented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (INR 00000), except whan
ctherwise indicated.

(b} Functlenal and presentation currency
The campany's financial statements are presentsd in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the fundctional and presantation currency.

fe} New and amended standards adopted by the Company
Ind AS 115 - Ravanue from contracts with customers
MGA has notified Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customer, mandatorily applicabla from 01 April 2018 etther based on a full retrospectiva ar modifiad
retrospective application. The standard requires the Company to recegnise revenue to depict the transfer of pramised goods or sendces to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration o which the sntity expacts to ba antiled in exchangs for those goods or senvices. It establishes a naw five-stap model that will apply to
revenus arising from contracts with customers,

The appl of the naw policy uired to make the following judgments:

The Company is raguired to assess sach of its contracts with custamers ta determina whether perfarmance obligations are satisfiad over me or at a point in ime in
order to d ine the iate method of ising revenue. The Company has assessed that based on the sale and purchase agreemants entarad into with
customers and the pravisions of ralevant laws and regulations, where contracts are entered into to provide real estata assets to customer, the Campany does nat
create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and usually has an enfarceable right to payment for I to date. In these cir the
Company recagnises revenue over time. Where this is not the case revenue is recognised ata point in time.

Determination of transaction prices
The Company is required to detarmine the ransaction prica in respect of sach of its contracts with customers. In making such judgment the Company assass tha
impact of any vanabla consideration in the contract, dus to discounts or penafties, the existence of any significant financing component in the contract and any non-
cash coneidaration in the contract. In determining the impact of variable consideration the Company uses the "most-ikely amount” method in IndAS 115, wharaby the
transaction price is detarmined by referenca to the single most likely amount in a ranga of possible consideration amounts.

Transfer of control In contracts with customers

In cases where the Company ines that ars satisfied at a paint in time, rovanue is recognisad when control over the assats that is tha
subject of the contract is transferred to tha customer. In the case of contracts to sell real sstats asssts this is generally when the unit has been registered through a sale
deed and legal enfarcaable right to collact payment is established.

h addition, the application of Ind AS 115 has resulted in the following esﬂmalion process:
of

price to in
For registered contracts through a sale dud but the project is not. cnrnnlam revenue from such contracts is racognised ovar ime, The Company has elected to apply
the input mathed in allocating the \ price to pi whera revenue is recognised over tme. The Company cansidars that tha use of tha

input method which requires revenus recognition on the basis of the Company's efforts to the satisfaction of the parformance obligation provides the best reference of
revenus actually earned. In applying the input method the Company estimates the cost to complete the projects in order to determine the ameount of revenue to be
recognisad. Thesa estimates include the cast of providing infrastructure, potential claims by contractors as svaluated by the project consuftant and the cost of mesting

other ta the i

{d) Falrvalue measurements
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liability in an orderly ion between tici atthe date,
regardless of whether that price is diractly obsarvable or estimated using anather valuation ique. The fair value basad on the ion that the
transaction to sall the assst or tha franstar tha labify takes place either: in the principal market for the asset or ahilty. or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the assat or liability. The fair value of an asset or a liabiity is using the participants would use when

pricing the asset or abilty, assuming that market participants act in sconomic bast interest.

A faif value measurement of a non-financial assat takes inlo account a market participant's abilty to generats economic benefits by using the asssts in its highest and
bast use or by selling it to anather markat participant that would use the assat in its highast and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use .
of relevant abservabla inputs and minimizing the use of unobservabla inputs.

All assets and fiabilities for which fair value is maasured or disclosad in the financial statements are catagorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as fallows,

based on the lowast input that is significant to the fair value as a whola:
Level 1: Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markats for identical assets or liabiites.
Leval 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowast input that is si to the fair valua is directly or indirectly abssrvable.

Level 3: Valuation techniques far which the lowest input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
Far assets and liabilies that are recognized in the financial statements on recuring basis, tha Company datermines whether transfars have occurred betwaen levels in
the hiararchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the Inwuslluw!i input \ha! is Nanlﬁuntm H'!o fair value measurement as a whole) at the end cof each reporting

period. The assats atfair valus on 3 ming basis, primariy t | assats such as intangible assats, //\\
7 ) P\RA N,I(
e

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Campany has datarmined the class of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, charactaristic and risks. Df‘hﬁisiﬂs\‘
and liabiity and the level of fair value hisrarchy as explained above, Y




te)

fa)

My

Current versus hon-current classification
The Company presents assats and Eabilities in the balance sheet based an current! nan-currant classification.
(i) An asset is classifiad as cumant when itis:
* Expected to be realized or intended to sold or con
= Held primarily for the purposs of rading
- Expectad to be raalized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
« Cash or cash equivalents unless restrictad from being exchangad or usad to sattie a iability for at least twelve manths
after the reporting periad
(i) All other asssts are classified as non-Gurrent.
(i) A Biability is classified as current when:
- Itis expacted to ba sattlad in normal operating cycls
« Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
* Itis due to ba satiiad within twalve months after the reporting period, or
« There is no unconditional right to defer the setilement of the liability for at lsast twalve months after the reporting period
(v} All other liabilites are classifisd as non-current,
(v) Deferred tax assets and fabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilties,
Based on the natura of sanica, the Company has ascertained its aperating cycle as twelve manths for all assets and liabilities.

d in normal operating cycle

Property. plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment ars stated at cast, net of and lossas, if any. The cost mmpnsns purchase price, cost
directly atiributable to bring the assets to its working candition for tha intended use and borrowing costs, if caphalization criteria are met. Any frade discounts and
rebates are deducted in amiving at the purchasa prics,

Subsaquent sxpanditurs relatad to an item of Property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it incraases the future benefits fram the existing assat
beyond its previously assassed standard of parformance. All other expenses on existing Property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts. are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of Property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference betwsen the net disposal proceads and the camying
amount of the assst and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assat is de-recagnizad.

The Company identifies and determines cost of acset significant to total cost of the assat having useful life that is matarially differsnt from that of the remaining life.
Proparty, plant and equipment under installation of construetion as at balanca sheet date are shown as capital work-n-progress and the related advances are shown
as other assats,

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on WDV basis over the useful lfa prescribed under Division Il of Companies Act, 2013. The identifiad
companents, if any, are depreciatad on their useful ves; the remaining asset is depreciated over ths Ifs of the principal asset. Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,

prescribes useful life for fixed assats. Fuﬂh!r schedule |l also allows companies to use higherfower usaful live and residual value if such useful live and residual values
can be iy and for dif is disclosed in the financial The believes that di iation rate currently used
fairly reflects the estimate wfthu useful fes and residual valua of praperty plant and equipments, though these rates in certain cases are different fram lives prescribed
under Schedule IL

The Company has sstmated the following usaful lives to provide depreciation en its Property, plant and squipment, as follows:
cription,

Usetul life
Cnmpuws and sarvers 5 years
Netwerking equipments. S years
Fumnitura and fitinge 7 years
Office equipments 5 years®

* Telephone equipment are depreciatad over a period of 3 years as per intemal tachnical evaluation

Depreciation is not recarded on capital work-in-progress untl fon and i ion are completa and the asset is ready for its intended uss.

Advances paid towards tha acquisition of property, plant and equipment autstanding at each Balance Sheet dats is classified as 'Capital

advances’ under other non-cuirent assets in situations where the wark far developmant of that assat has not commenced or the assat,

being a standard/ shelf product, is not delivered and ready for intended usa as decided by the Group. In Situations whara the work for
of the assat has the cost of i till the reporting date is disclosed under ‘Capital wark-n-pragress'

Lease-hold improvements are amortised over the useful life of assets or the primary period of leass, whichevar is shorter. Pro-rata depreciation is provided from / upto
the date of purchase / disposal for assats purchased or sold during the year. Assets individually costing INR 5 or less are depraciatad over a period of one year.

The residual values, usaful lives and methads of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviawsd at each financial year end and adjusted prospactively, if
appropriate,

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sals, if its carrying amount will ba recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
thraugh contnuing use. For this to be the case, the assat must be available for immediate sale in its presant condition subjact only to terms.
that are usual and customary for sales of such assets and its sale must be highly probable and sale is sxpected to be complated within
one yoar from data of classification.

Mon-current assats held for sale are presented separatsly in the current section of the consolidated balance sheet Non-current assets
classified as held for sala ara measured at the lower of their camying amaunt and fair value less costs to sell, unlass these itams prasantad
in the dnnpnsal gmup are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits and financial sssets that are spacificaly exampt from
tha 1t assets are not i or amortised whils they are classified as held for sale

Intanalble assets
Intangible assats acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible asssts are camed at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairmant lossas, if any.

Intangible assats are amortized on 3 WDV basis over the useful ife prescribed under Division Il of Companies Act, 2013. The Company usss a rebuttablo prasumption
that the useful life of an intangible asset wil nat exceed ten years from the date when the asset is avallable for use. Such intangible assats and intangibls assets not yat
available for use are tested for impaimment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Al other intangible assats are assessed for impaiment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible assat may be impaired,

The tion peried and the ization method for an intangible :ssm are reviewad at least at the end of each reporting year. Changes in the expected usaful life
or the expected pattem of consumption of future banefits in the asset are considered to modify tha i perind or methad, as appropriata,
and are treatsd as changes in ing estimates. The amortization expanse on intangible assats with finite lives is recognized in the statemant of profit and loss

unless such expenditure forms part of another assat.

Gains or losses arising from de-racognition of an intangible asset ara measurad as the diffarence batween the net disposal procsads and the camying amount of the
assel and are racognized in the statsmant of profit and loss when the assat is de-recognized.

Thq Company has estimated the following usaful lives to provida amartisation on intangible assets, as follows:

Useful life
Sattware Syears

Forelan v and
These financial stalamants are prasantad in Indian rupees (INR"), the currency of India, which is the functional currency of the Campany.

Transactions in foreign cumencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional cumrency spot rates at the date of the transaction. Fareign-
ourrenc.y denominated manetary assats and liabilties ars translated to the relevant functional currency at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheat date. Exchange

arising on or lation of monetary items are recagnized in the statement of profit and loss. Foreign currancy mn—mnnatary assets / fiabilities,
measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rata pravalent at the data of the initial y itams d at fair valuo are ranslated
at the exchange rate pravalent at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain / loss arising on translation of nnn-monata:y #tem measured at fair valuo are
treated in line with the recognition of the gain /loss an the change in the fair value of the item [ather comprehansice income or profit and loss, respectively].




M Revenue recognition

In March 2018, Ministry of Corporats Affairs ("MCA") had natified Ind AS 115, ‘Revenue from Contract with Customers', replacing the existing revenue recognition
standards Ind AS 18, ‘Revenue’. As per the new standard, revanue is recognisad to depict the transfer of promised goods or services te a customer in an amount that
reflacts the fair value of the consideration recaived or receivable which the entity expects to be entitied in exchange for those goods or sarvices. Ind AS 115 establishes
a five-step model that is applied to revenue eamed from a contract with a customer, regardless of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. The standard is
sffactiva far annual periods beginning on o ater 1 April, 2018, The Company has adoptad to the extant applicable this standard using the modified ratrospectva
aporoach,

Revenue is rocognized when, or as, control of 3 promised service transfers ta a customer, in an amount that reflects the considaration to which the Company expects
to be entilad in axchange for fransferring thosa servces. Ta recognize revenues, the follawing fiva step approach is applied: (1) identify the cantract with a customer,
(2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (3) detsrmine the transactian prics, (4) allocats the price 1o the ions in the
confract, and (5 gnize revenues when a abligation is satisfied.

Revenue recognition for ime-and-matarial

Revenues related to ime-and-materials are recognized over the period the services are providad using an input method (efforts expendad).

Becausa of control transfarring over time, revanue is recagnized basad on the extant of progress towards completion of the performance obligation. Tha Company
generally use the efforts expended as measura of progress for the Company's cantracts because thera is a direct relationship betwsen input and productivity.

Revenue recognition for fixed price contracts

Fived prica cantracts ara oftan modifiad to account for changas in contract spacifications and requirements. The Company considers contract modifications to exist
when the madification either creates new or changes the existing enforceabla rights and obligations. Mast of contract modifications ara for sanices that are not distinet
fram the existing contract dus to the significant senvice provided in the context of the contract and are accounted for as if they ware part of that existing contract. The
affact of a contract modfication on the on price and our measura of progress for the perfarmance obligatian to which it relates, is recagnized as an adjustment
to revanue (sither as an increasa in or a reduction of revenue) on a cumulative catch-up basis.

Revenue is recagnized net of discounts and allowances, goods and senvices taxes, and includes reimbursament af out-of-pocket expensas, with the comespanding out-
of-pocket expenses included in cost of revenues.

The Campany extand credit to cliants based upen M; of their it The Campany assses the timing of the transfar of sarvices to
the customer as compared to the timing of payments to determine whether a s financing exists. As a practical expedient, the Company da not
assess the existanca of a significant financing componant when the differonce between payment and transfer of deliverables is a year or less. If the differenca in tming
anises for reasons other than the provision of finance to either the customer or the Company, na financing component is deamed to exist The primary purpase of our
invoicing tarms is to provids customers with simplified and predictable ways of purchasing eUr sanvces, not to recsive or provida financing fram o to customers.

.

Incentiva revenues, voluma discounts. or any other form of variable consideration is estimatod using either the sum of prababilty weightad amaunts in a range of
possible consideration amounts (expectad valus), or the single most likely amaunt in a rangs of passible consideration amounts. {most likely amount), depending on
which methad bettar pradicts the amount of consideration raalizable. Transaction price includes variable consideration only to the extant it is probabla that a significant
revarsal of revenues recognized will not occur when the uncertainty i with the variable i ion is resolved. The estimatss of variable consideration and
determination af whether to include esimated amounts in the transaction price may invalve judgment and are based largely on an assessmant of anticipated
parformance and all information that is reasonably available to tha Company.

Contract liabilities consist of advance payments and bilings in excess of revenues recegnized. The Company classify contract fability as current or nancurrent basad on
the iming of when they expect to recognize the revenues. The Company classily it's right ta ! tion ir hange for del sithar as accounts receivable
or a conlract asssts. Accounts recelvable are recorded at the invoiced amaunt and do not bear interest. Revenue racognized but not biled to customers Is classified ss
confract assats in the statsments of financial pasftion. Contract ntracts where right to idaration is tional (i.e. enly the passaga of tima is
requirad before the payment is dua).

Finance income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortisad cost ar at fair value through other comprahensiva incams, interest income is recordad using tha sffactiva interest
rate (EIR). EIR is the rata that exactly discounts the estimatad future cash payments or recaipts over the expectad life of the financial instrurment or a shortar perind,
wihers appropriats, to the gross carmying amount of the financial assst or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective intersst rate, the
Company estimates the expectad cash fiows by cansidering all the contractual tarms of the financial instrument (for example, prapayment, extansion, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expectad credit losses.

Dividend income

Revenua is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is establishad, which is generally the sharehelders' approval date.

i} Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are atibutable to the scquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying acsat is ane
that necessarily takes a substantial-period of tima to get ready for its intended usa or sale. All ather borrowing costs are charged to the statament of profit and loss.
Borrowing costs alsa includs exchange differances to tha extant ragarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

(K) Leases
‘The Company assassas at contract inception whether a cantract s, or contains, a lease. Thatis, if the contract convays the right to control the usa of an identifisd asest
for a peried of time in exchange for consideration.

Policy applicable befors April 01, 2079
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a loase is based on the substance of the armangement at the inception of the lsase. The arangement s,

or contains leasa, if fulflment of the is dep 1t on the uss of or assets and the arangemant convays the right to usa the asset or assets,
oven if that right is explicity in an arrangement.

Aleasa is classified atthe inception data as finance lease or operating lease.

Finance lease
Finance leass, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benafits incidental to the ownership of the leased itsm, are capitalised at the
inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of leased property and presant value of minimum lsasa payments,

Leasa payment are apparfioned between the finance charges and reduction of [ease liability so as to achisve a constant rate of Intsrest on the remaining balance of
Isasa liabiity. Finance charge are recognised as finance costs in the statement of profit and Ioss. Laass management fee, legal charges and other initial direct costs of
lease are lized as they are directly 1o the assst.

A leasad assot is dopreciated on straight line basis over the useful ife of the asset Howsver if there are no reasonable certainty that the Company will abtain the
ownarship by the end of the leasa term the capitalized asset is depreciated an straight line basis over the shorter of the usaful life of the asset or the lease tarm.
Operating lease ‘

Lease where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leasas term are classifies as operating lsases. Operating lease
paymants are recognised as expenss in statement of profit and lose on a straight-ine basis over the laase term,

Puolicy appiicable with effect from April 01, 2019

Company as a lessee

The Company assassas whether a contract is, or contains a lease, at incaption of the contract. A contract i, or contains, a leasa if the contract conveys the right to
control the Cuse of an identified asset for a period of tima in exchange for

cansideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the usa of

an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: i} the contract involves the uss

of an idantifiad asset, ii) the Company has ially all of the ic benafits
from uss of tha assat through the paricd of the laasa and iii) the Company has the
right to direct the usa of the assat




M Emplovee benefits expense and retirement
() Gratuity liability
The Campany provides for gratuity, a definad banefit plan (the *Grality Plan") cavering eligible emplaysas. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vestad
at rati death, itation or termination of k of an amount based on the respective employse's base salary and the tanure of
The labiity is ined based on an actuarial valuation carriad out by an independent actuary as at the balance shoat date using the prajected unit
credit method, Actuarial gains / losses ars recognized immediatsly in the balance sheet with a carrespanding debit or credit to ratained earnings through other
comprehensive incame in the year in which they accur,

(i) Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are antiad to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The amployees can carry
forward up to the specified portion of the unutiized accumulated compensated absences and utilize it in future pariods or receive cash as, per the Company policy. The
expectad cost of accumulating compensated absances is datarmined by actuanial valuation (using the projected unit cradit method) based on tha additional amount
expected to be paid as a result of the unusad entilement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. The expensa on non-accumulating compensated absances
s fecognized in the statement of profit and loss in the yaar in which the absances occur,

The Campany presents the liability as curent liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional legal and contractual right to defar its
satilament for twalve manths after the raporting data,

{ii) Prevident fund
The Company'’s contribution fo provident fund is charged to the statement of profit and loss. The Company's contributions towards pravident fund are depositad with
the Ragicnal Provident Fund Commissioner under a defined jon plan, in ‘with Empl i ‘unds and Miscel: Provisions Act,

(iv} Share basad compensation

the cost relatad to stock-based awards granted to employses of the Company by its ultimats. halding Company. In accordance
with Ind AS 102, 'Aceounting for share based payment, the Company measures stack-based compensation cost at grant date, based on tha estimatad fair value of the
award and recognizas tha cost (net of estmatad forfaitures) over the raquisits servce period. The Company estimates the fair valua of stock opfions and the cost is
recorded under the head employee benefit expensa in the statement of profit and loss with cerrespanding increase in “Shars Basad Payment Reserve”,

{¥) Short-term employos benefits comprising emplayee costs including bonus is in the of profit and logs on the basis of the amount
paid or payable for the period during which senvices ars rendered by the emplayas,

{m) Tax expense
Tax expsnes comprisas cumant and defarrad incoms tax, Current income-tax is measurad at the amount expactsd to ba paid to the tax autharities in accardance with the Income-
tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax k p iling in the respactive tax juris Sons where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
thoss that are enactad or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Cumrentincome tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is ized outside profit or loss (either in other h income or in equity). Currant tax items are
gnized in lation to ths underlying ransaction ether in OCI or directly in squity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect o
situations in which tax at are subject to interp and i ik where

Deforred income taxes reflect the impact of temparary differences betwoen taxable income and accounting income originating during the current Yyear and reversal of timing
diffarences far the earlier yoars. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enactad or substantively onactad at the reporting dats.

Deferrad tax liahiiites are racognized for all taxable tamparary differencas, except when the deferred tax liability arisas fram the initial recagnition of gaodwil or an assat or liability
in a transaction that is not a businees combination and, at the ims of the ither the ing profit nor tha taxabla profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are izad for ded: i i . the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tax asssts ars
racognized only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit wil be available against which deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unussd tax
credits and unused tax lossas can be utiized, except when the deferred tax assat arises from the initial recagnition of an assat or Eability in a transaction that is not a
businass combination and, at tha time of the ftransaction, affects neither tha accounting profit nor the taxable profit ar loss,

The camrying amount of deferred tax assats is reviewed at sach reporting date and reduced to the extant that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will b
available to allow or part of the deferred tax assat to be utilised. Unracognized deferred tax assats are re-assessad at 8ach reporting data and are recognized to the
extent that it has bacome probable that future taxabla profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be racoverod,

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, axcept whan they are ralatad 1o ftams that are recognised in other comprehensiva income or directly In equity,
in which casa, the current and defamad tax are also racognized in other comprahansive incame or directly in equity respactivaly.

Daforred tax assets and liabilities are offsat, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off currant tax Aassats against current tax liabikties and the deferred tax assots and
deferred taxes relats to the same taxable entity and the same taxation autharity.

(n) Provision and contingent liability
A provigion is racognized when tha Company has a present obligation as a result of Past svant, and it is probabla that an outlow of resources embodying economic
benefits wil ba required to sottle the obligation that can be refiably estimated. Provisions are not discounted to its present valus and are determined based on best
estmats required to settie the obligation at the balanca sheet data. These estimates are reviewad at each balanca shast date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

Provisions for onereus contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a cantract are lower than the unavoidable costs of
masting the future obligations under the cantract. Provisions for onefous contracts ara measured at tha present value of lowar of tha expected net cost of fulfiling the
contract and the expectad cost of terminating the contract.

A contingent llabifity is a possible obfgation that arisss from pasl events whose existenca will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-sccurrence of one or mora
uncartain future avents beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized becauss it is not probable that an outflow of resources will ba
required to setfis the obligation. A contingant liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized becauss it cannat be
measurad reliably. The Company does not gnize a i y iscl its existance in the financial statsments.

(o) Financlal Instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial assat of one entity and a financial liability or squity instrument of anothar entity,

Financial assats

Al financial assats are recognizad initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are diractly attnbutablo to the acquisition of financial assets (other than financial assets at
fair valus through profit or loss) are added to the fair valus measured an initial racognition of financial asset. Purchase and sale of financizl assats are accountad for at
trade date.

(i) Financiel instrumants at amortized cost

A financial instrument is measured at the amontized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) the assat s held within 2 business model whase objsctive is to hold assats for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) contractual terms of the asset give risa on specified dates ta cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets ara subssquently measured at amortized cost using the effactive interast rate (EIR) method. Amartized cost is
calculatad by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in other
income in the statement of profit and loss, The losses arising from impai are ized in the of profit and loss. This category includss cash and bank
balances, loans, unbiled revanue, trade and other recaivables,

(i) Financial instrumant at Fair Value through Other Comprehensiva Income (OCH)
A financial instrument is classified and measured at fair valus thraugh OCI if both of the following criteria are met:
) The abjective of the business model is achieved bath by collecting contractual cash flows and salling the financial assats, and

b) The assats b f p solely f principal and interest,
Financial instruments includad within the 0G| category are measured initially as well as at sach reporting date at fair valus. Fair value movaments are recognized in
OCL. On di gnition of the asset, ive gain or loss Z izod in OCl is recl: from OClto of profit and loss,

(i} Financial instrument at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Any financial instrument, which doss not meet the critaria for categorization at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, is classified at fair
value through profit and loss. Financial instruments included in the fair value through profit and loss category are measured at fair value with al changes recagnized in
the statsment of profit and loss.

(iv) De-recognitian of financial assats
A financial assat is primarly derecognized when the rights to recefva cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Company has transferred its rights to receiva cash
flows from tha assat,

=
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I Financial liabiliias Jif
Al financial kabities are recognized infialy at far value and, in the casa of loans and bomawings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. Y
F o
The subssquent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their clasaification, as described belaw: Nl SSSION o

{i) Financial liabilities at feir value through profit or loss
Financial labilties at fair vakuo through profit or loss Include financial iabilfies. designatad upon inftal recognion as at faif value through prafit o loss.




() Financial liabilities at amortisad cost
Aftar initial recagnition, intarest-bearing loans and b ing: sub: measured at isad cost using tha Effactive Interest Rats [EIR] method. Gains and
lasses ara recagnisad in the statament of profit and loss when the lizbilties are derecognisad as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amartisad cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and faes or costs that ars an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

(1) Da-racognition of financial iabililies

A financial labilty is derocognisad when the obligation under the liabilty is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an axisting financial liability is rsplaced by another
from the sama lender on substantially diffarant tarms, or the tarms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchanga or modification is reated as the
derecognition of the riginal liabilty and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognisad in the statement of profit and
loss. £

Financial assets and financial liabilites are offset and the net amount fs reported in the balance sheet f there is a currently enforcaable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to sattia on & nat basis, to roalize the asssts and settle the liabiitios simultanacusly.

Impairment

(i) Financial assats

The Company recagnizes loss alowances using the expected cradit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss, Loss
Ik for trade i with na signit financing is d atan amount equal to lifstime ECL. Far all ather financial assats, expectad cradit

required to be ized is g asani gain or loss in statement of profit and loss.

(il) Non-financial assefs

At the and of aach reparting period, the Company reviaws the garrying amaunts of fts tangible and intangible assats to datarmina whather thare is any indication that
those assats hava suffered an impaiment lass. If any such indication exists, the recovarable amount of the asset is estimated in order to detarmine the extant of the
impaimmant loss {if any). Where it is not possible to estimats the la amount of an individual the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset balongs, Where a reasanable and consistant basis of allocation can be identified, corparata assats are alsa allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallost Company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identifiad. Racoveratls amount is the ‘higher of fair valua less costs to sell and value in Use. In assassing value in uss, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their prasent valus using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markst assessments of the time valus of money and the risks spacific to the assat for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an assat (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carmying amount,
the camying amount of the assat (or cash-generating unit} is reduced to its amount. An imp: tloss is gnized i iately in tha of profit
and loss, unlass the relovant accot is carmied ata revalued amount, in which case the impai istreatad as a u dacrease.

An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine tha recoverable amaunt. The carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its revised recaverable, amount provided that this amount does not axcaad the camrying amount that would have been determinad

(netof any ! on or iation) had no impairr has been recognised for the asset in prior years,

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a companant of the Company that engages in business activitios from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses, inchiding revenues
and expenses that relats to s with any of the Company's other , and for which discreta financial inf ion is available. Op g ars

reportsd in a manner consistent with the intamal reparting provided 1o the chief operating decision maker (coom).

Tha Company's Baard of Director's has been identfied as the CODM who is responsible for financial dacision making and assessing performanca, The Company has
a single operating sagment as the aperating results of the Company ara reviewad on an overall basis by the CODM.

Eamnings per share (EPS")
Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or Ioss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of aquity
shares cutstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS amounts are computad by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic eamings per ghare and alsa the waighted avarage number of aquity shares that could have baen issued upan canversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares. The diutad potential equity shares are adjusted for the pracesds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair valus (.. the average
markst value of the outstanding sharas). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the year, unless issued at a latar date. Dilutive

Cash and cash equivalents .

Cash and cash aquivalants in tha baloncs sheet comprise cash at banks and an hand, short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or lass, which are
subjact to an insignificant riek of changes in value,

For the purpose of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shart-tarm deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank averdraft as thay are
considerad an integral part of the Gampany’s cash management.

Government Grants

Use of estimates and judgments

The praparation of the Company's financial requires Manag: to make estimates and assumptions that affact the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assats and liabilities, and the disclosurs of contingent liabilties at the end of sach reporting periad. However, uncartainty about these assumptions
and sstimates could result in outcomes that Gould require a material adjustmant to the carmying amount of the asset or labilty affectad in the futuro periods.

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the and of the reporting period are discussed bslaw, The Company
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were preparad. Existing circumstancas and assumptions about future
developments, howaver, may change due to markst changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumntions when thav accur

Useful kvas of propenty, plant and equiment

Managemant estimates the useful lives of thess property, plant and equipment to be within 5 to 7 years. The camrying amount of the Company's property, plant and
squipment at March 31, 2023 was Rs.3,620.58 lakhs [March 31, 2022: Rs, 779,25 lakhs ). Changes in the expectad lavel of usage and technolgical devalopments
cauld impact the aconamic ussful lives and the residual values of thesa assats, therefora futurs depracation charges could be rovisad,

Impairmant of non-financial assats
The Company assesses whethar there are any indicators of impairment for all nonfinancial assets at each raporting date. Non-financial assets are testad far
impairment when thara are indicators that the carrying amaunts may not be recovarable,

Whan value in uss i are M must estimate the expected future cash flows from th

suitable discount rate in arder ta calculate the present value of those cash flows.




(i) Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objsctive evidance that 3 financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is
chjectve evidenca of impairment, the Company considers factors such 28 the probability of insoivancy or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or
significant dalay in payments. '

(v) Percentage of complation of contracts
The pany uses the of method using the input (sffort expandad) method to measure progress towards complation in respect of fixed price
contracts. Percentage of complation method refies on estimates of total expectad efforts to complate the project. Thesa estimates are assessad continually during the
term of the contracts and the recognized revenue and profit are subject to revision as the contract prograssas to complatian. When estimates indicate that a lass will be
incurred, the lass is providad for in the paried in which the loss becomes prabable.

Contracts with customers often include promises to transfer multiple senvces to a custamer. Determining whether services are considered distinet performance
cbligations that should be accounted for saparataly or togather requires significant judgment based on nature of the contract, transfer of control over the service, ability
of the sanice to benefit the customer on its own or together with other readily available resources and the abilfty of sarvice to be separataly identifiable from other
promises in the contract.

) Judgments made in applying accounting polisies
In the process of applying the Company's accaunting policies, Managamant has made the follawing judgments, apart from thosa invalving estimations, which has the
most sig effoct an the amounts ised in the financial

Income taxes
Significant judgment is involvad in detsrmining the Company's provision for income taxes. There are certzin transactions and computations for which the ultimata tax

i8suns based on estimates of whather additional




